
  1 

 

Agenda 

   
Contact Officer: Michael Flowers, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213755 

 

E-mail: Michael.Flowers@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 17th January 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 25 JANUARY 2022  AT 6.30 PM 
 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Members of the Committee: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

Mocky Khan (Co-Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti 

George Levy 

Jane Murphy 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) 

Amos Duveen 

Simon Howell 

Mike Pighills 

 

Preferred Substitutes: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

David Bartholomew 

Sam Casey-Rerhaye 

Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 

Axel Macdonald 

Jo Robb 

Jo Robb 

Alan Thompson 

Ian White 

Celia Wilson 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Alan Thompson 

David Turner 

Ian White 

Celia Wilson 

Nathan Boyd 

Andy Cooke 

Andy Cooke 

Eric de la Harpe  

Alison Jenner 

Janet Shelley 

Elaine Ware 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

 
1  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
2  Minutes (Pages 4 - 8) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2021   
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 
6  External auditor's annual audit letter - 2019/20 (Pages 9 - 33) 

 
To receive the annual audit letter from the council’s external auditor, EY. 

 
7  External audit planning report - 2020/21 (Pages 34 - 76) 

 
To receive the audit planning report 2020/21 from the council’s external auditor, EY. 

 
8  Internal audit activity report - third quarter 2021/22 (Pages 77 - 

96) 
 

To consider the internal audit manager’s report.  

 
9  Internal audit management report - third quarter 2021/22 

(Pages 97 - 103) 
 

To consider the internal audit manager’s report. 

 
10  Future provision of external audit services (Pages 104 - 117) 

 
To consider the reports of the head of finance. 

 



  3 

 

11  Treasury management strategy - 2022/23   
 

To receive the report for the treasury management strategy - 2022/23 (report to 
follow). 

 
12  Corporate risk review (Pages 118 - 131) 

 
To consider the report of the head of policy and programmes. 

 
13  Annual complaints report - 2020/21 (Pages 132 - 157) 

 
To consider the report of the head of corporate services. 

 
14  Work programme (Pages 158 - 162) 

 
To note the committee’s work programme. 

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 



South Oxfordshire District Council - Joint Audit and Governance Committee - Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the  

Joint Audit and 

Governance 

Committee 

 
held on Tuesday, 30 November 2021 at 
6.30 pm in First Floor Meeting Space, 135 
Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 

Open to the public, including the press 

 
 
 
 
 

Present in the meeting room: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: David Bartholomew (as substitute for Jane 
Murphy) and Peter Dragonetti 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) and Mike Pighills 
Officers: Michael Flowers and Simon Hewings 
 

Remote attendance: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Mocky Khan (Co-Chair) and George Levy 
Vale of White Horse District Councillor: Simon Howell 
Officers: Tom Archer, Patrick Arran, Emma Creed, Victoria Dorman-Smith, Jeremy Lloyd, 
and Richard Spraggett 
Other: Councillors Andrew Crawford (Vale of White Horse) and Leigh Rawlins (South 
Oxfordshire District Council) 
External auditor: Kevin Suter (EY) 
 
 

90 Apologies for absence  
 

South Oxfordshire District Councillor Jane Murphy tendered apologies.  
 

91 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2021 as a 
correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such. 

 

92 Declarations of interest  
 

None. 
 

93 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 

None. 

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council - Joint Audit and Governance Committee - Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

 

94 Public participation  
 

None. 
 

95 External auditor's audit results report 2019/20  
 

The external auditor from Ernst and Young introduced the report. The committee were 
given the context of the report, with the original accounts having been presented to the 
committee in July. However, as a result of subsequent significant/material issues 
discovered since, the accounts were required to return to the committee for approval. 
The external auditor explained that the finalisation of testing of the collection funds 
had been completed and that appropriate information within income had been 
identified. While there had been a change to the statement of accounts, there had 
been nothing deemed overly significant in the changes. The auditor explained that the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) issue had been solved, and this was completed 
by going through previous years’ data to identify what amendments had been 
required. The committee was subsequently told that South Oxfordshire had material 
changes to the prior year accounts which meant a prior year adjustment was required. 
The Vale of White Horse however was not technically required to make a prior year 
adjustment due to the size of the error, but management had chosen to make one. 
Additionally, a point had been raised about the controls which led to the CIL 
accounting error issue which gave the auditors feedback on the occurrence. 

 
In response to a question from the committee requesting whether any further material 
issues had been found, the officer explained that minor typographical and numerical 
errors had been identified. Additionally, minor disclosure notes and references back to 
the statements including casting errors had been corrected. 
 
A question of clarification was asked to the auditors on where the CIL income went 
and whether it would go directly into the reserves. The response to this question was 
that not all the CIL money was received by the council as some of the income was 
distributed to other parties.  
 
A question was asked on why the errors occurred and could this occur in future. The 
response was that the team had gained more experience from the audit and would be 
more robust as a result for future audits for the councils. An additional question was 
asked on the implications from audits and whether there would be an impact on future 
processes or any reputational damage. The follow-up answer from the officer was that 
from an audit perspective, the number of errors would be considered for materiality in 
future years, but they considered it unlikely to cause any reputational damage. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s results report 2019/20. 

 

96 Statement of accounts 2019/20  
 

The Head of Finance introduced the report and explained that a subsequent amended 
paper had been sent to members which corrected typographical errors and cross 
casting.  

 
The Strategic Finance Manager informed the committee that the figure for changes for 
the fair values of investment properties had been changed. The officer clarified that 
while the report had given a figure of £218,000, the correct figure was £281,000 but 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council - Joint Audit and Governance Committee - Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

the change in figure did not impact the rest of the numerical information as this had 
been an error due to manual data entry into the accounts. The officer informed the 
committee that the figure had been corrected in the supplementary paper circulated 
before the meeting. 
 
A question was asked on why the error did not impact the financial totals given. The 
officer explained that the table in the accounts were in Microsoft Word and the figures 
were manually typed in, which in this case had resulted in the incorrect figure being 
included. 
 
In response to a question from the committee surrounding the balance sheet, the 
officer explained that the increased in balance sheet worth was primarily from CIL, 
Section 106 funding, and a revenue budget underspend. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve the statement of accounts 2019/20 for South Oxfordshire 
District Council and to authorise the co-chair to sign the document if no material 
differences are raised. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve the statement of accounts 2019/20 for the Vale of White 
Horse District Council and to authorise the co-chair to sign the document if no material 
differences are raised. 

 

97 Annual governance statements 2019/20  
 

The Head of Finance clarified to the committee that the statements presented were 
nearly identical to those approved in the July committee meeting. The officer 
confirmed that the only alterations were for the dating of the document and an update 
due to a change in leadership at South Oxfordshire District Council. 

 
RESOLVED: to approve South Oxfordshire’s Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
to form part of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve Vale of White Horse’s Annual Governance Statement 
2019/20 to form part of the Statement of Accounts 

 

98 Letters of representation to the external auditor  
 

The Head of Finance introduced the letters of representation to the external auditor. 
The officer explained that the key change for both letters had been in relation to 
paragraph A5 on the report which referred to unadjusted audit differences. The officer 
explained that in South Oxfordshire there had been no such differences and the 
paragraph had been removed. In the Vale of White Horse, it had been amended to list 
three differences together with a management comment as to why they had not been 
adjusted. The officer further expanded that there had been paragraphs where Covid-
19 had been referred to specifically where this had not been before but that these did 
not impact the outcome of the letters of the representation to the external auditor. 

 
RESOLVED: to agree that the committee’s co-chair from South Oxfordshire District 
Council signs the letter of representation to the external auditor once the statement of 
accounts 2019/20 have been signed-off. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council - Joint Audit and Governance Committee - Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

RESOLVED: to agree that the committee’s co-chair from Vale of White Horse District 
Council signs the letter of representation to the external auditor once the statement of 
accounts 2019/20 have been signed-off. 

 

99 Councillors' code of conduct complaints 2020/21 - annual report  
 

The chair welcomed Patrick Arran, the new Head of Legal and Democratic and 
Monitoring Officer to the committee.  

 
The Monitoring Officer introduced the report explaining that it took a standard format 
and set out the basis for the code of conduct and how it operated. The report, which 
provided a summary of complaints received and determined in the 2020/21 municipal 
year against district and parish councillors, included a redacted summary which was 
available for members to view. The Monitoring Officer explained that based on his 
experience since joining the council, that the Code of Conduct issues raised were not 
a major issue at the current time, and that a number of enquiries were dealt with 
informally when possible. The Monitoring Officer also added that there was a thin line 
between a councillor acting in an official or unofficial capacity, which could be the 
deciding factor in the outcome of a complaint. 
 
The committee commented that only one code of conduct issue regarding the use of 
social media had occurred from a district councillor. Due to the possibility of increased 
incidents occurring through social media as a result of its frequent usage, the 
committee were satisfied that only one such incident had occurred.  
 
RESOLVED: to note the annual report on the councillors’ Code of Conduct for the 
2021/21 municipal year. 

 

100 Arrangements for investigating allegations under  the member code 
of conduct  
 

The Monitoring Officer introduced the report. The officer highlighted the 
recommendations set out in the report for the adoption of the proposed new 
arrangements for investigating allegations under the member code of conduct. The 
Monitoring Officer explained that since joining, he considered the role of investigating 
parish council complaints to have gone well. He expanded that one of the actions he 
had taken since joining the councils was to look at the existing arrangements of how 
the current complaints process operated. From this, he had set out a proposed new 
arrangement which was detailed in the report. The officer also explained that a 
consultation process had been conducted with the parish councils invited to provide 
feedback. 

 
In response to a question surrounding the parish council feedback rate, the officer 
explained that he had received six responses with some being acknowledgement 
emails while others providing significantly more detailed responses. The officer 
elaborated that he had not expected a high number of responses but instead, had 
wanted to at least provide parish clerks the opportunity to provide feedback before a 
possible adoption. 
 
A question was asked on the process or recruiting an independent person and the 
requirements to be appointed to the role. The officer’s response was that the process 
was statutory and had to be advertised, and that the position was generally for a year, 
although due to Covid-19 the council had extended its current independent persons 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council - Joint Audit and Governance Committee - Tuesday, 30 November 2021 

for an additional timeframe. The role was independent, and persons connected to 
councillors of the authority were excluded from eligibility. The officer also expanded 
that recruitment was a difficult process from experience due to the grace and favour 
nature of the role.  
 
The committee asked whether there was any financial impact from adopting the 
officer’s recommendations. The officer explained that his role was employed to 
undertake these responsibilities and that he did not expect any additional cases to 
arise from the arrangements, but rather they would be approached differently. 
 
RESOLVED: to 

1. Note the requirement that the Committee for Standards in Public Life Best 

Practice recommendations should be adopted by all councils and that the draft 

Arrangements implement all but two of the Best Practice recommendations. 

2. Subject to changes, recommend the Arrangements for investigating complaints and 

recommend them to the next appropriate meeting of Council for adoption. 

3. Request the Monitoring Officer to ensure that the register of members gifts and 

hospitality is updated and published quarterly. 

 

101 Treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22  
 

The Head of Finance introduced the report. The officer informed the committee that 
that low return on interest rates had meant that the predicted forecast income would 
be below the budget for both councils. It was however noted that the comparative 
benchmarks showed both councils exceeding all investment types and that they had 
stayed within the prudential indicators for the first six months. The officer also 
corrected a typographical error within the report and confirmed that in relation to 
paragraph twenty-five, that bank rates were cut to 0.1 per cent and not ten per cent. 

 
RESOLVED: to 

1. Note the treasury management mid-year monitoring report 2021/22 

2. Confirm satisfaction that the treasury activities were carried out in accordance with 

the treasury management strategy and policy. 

 

102 Work programme  
 

The Democratic Services Officer confirmed that in addition to the items on the work 
programme for January’s meeting, that the internal audit activity and management 
reports would both be presented. The officer also confirmed that the statement of 
accounts would be deferred to March with a date to be confirmed. 
In addition, the committee were informed that two new items would be presented at 
January’s meeting, these being: 

a. Future external audit arrangements 

b. Treasury management strategy 2022/23 

RESOLVED: to note the committee work programme. 
 

The meeting closed at 7.40 pm 

  

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire and 
Vale of White Horse
District Councils
Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2020

January 2022

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Page

Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 8

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 11

Section 4 Value for Money 15

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 18

Section 5 Focused on your future 21

Appendices

Appendix A Audit Fees 23

Contents

2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 
[OR As part the Auditor Engagement process, we have agreed with you the respective responsibilities of auditors 
and audited bodies. Copies of the Engagement Letter and Terms and Conditions of our appointment are available 
from the Chief Executive or via the bodies minutes on their website]. 

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and 
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA [OR The Terms and Conditions of our 
appointment contained within the Engagement Letter] sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply 
with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute, and 
covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities / Terms and Conditions of 
Engagement. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as 
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute.

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 1

Executive Summary

3

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council (“the Councils”) following completion of 
our audit procedures for the year ended 31 March 2020.  Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We set out these key impacts below. 

4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 
404, were published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to the publication date for 
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities. We were unable to complete 
the audits in those timescales, primarily due to the impact of the delayed audits from 2019/20, and the impact of 
Covid-19 on the Councils’ finance team and its capacity in a period where the Councils were also transitioning from 
their previously outsourced finance arrangements.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty have been included in the year-end 
valuation reports produced by the Councils’ external valuer. We consider that the material uncertainties disclosed by 
the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of property, plant and equipment. 

► Disclosures on Going Concern Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered that 
the unpredictability of the current environment gave rise to a risk that the Councils would not appropriately disclose 
the key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by management’s assessment with particular reference to 
Covid-19 and the Councils’ actual year end financial position and performance. 

► Events after the balance sheet date We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the current Covid-19 
pandemic will need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needed to reflect the specific 
circumstances of the Councils.

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by 
the entities due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the 
Councils’ systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE 
we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports. The changes to audit risks and 
audit approach changed the level of work that we needed to perform.

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process.

5

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified – the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Councils as 
at 31 March 2020 and of their expenditure and income for the year then ended 

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent.

► Concluding on the Councils’ arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you had put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statements were consistent with our understanding of the Councils

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Councils, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report.

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report.

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Councils’ Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

We had no matters to report.

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Councils’:

The above conclusions and opinions apply to both South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary (cont’d)

6

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of 
the Councils communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our Audit Results Report was issued on 01 December 2021

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audits 
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit 
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificates were issued on 01 December 2021

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Councils’ staff for their assistance during the course of our work. 

Kevin Suter
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 2

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

e
Responsibilities

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose

8

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the public, the key issues arising from 
our work which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Councils. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the 01 December 2021 Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee, representing those charged with governance. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are 
the most significant for the Councils.

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Responsibilities

9

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 22 September 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the 
National Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Councils have to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statements are misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Councils;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Councils which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts returns. The 
Councils are below the specified audit threshold of £500 million. Therefore we did not perform any audit procedures on the returns.

Responsibilities of the Councils

The Councils are responsible for preparing and publishing their statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the 
Council reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its 
governance arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Councils are also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources.

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01
11

Key Issues

The Councils’ Statement of Accounts are an important tool for them to show how they have used public money and how they can demonstrate their financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Councils’ Statements of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), 
and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. We issued unqualified audit reports on 1 December 2021.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 30 November 2021 Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare 
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

We undertook our procedures to address fraud risks, which included:

► Inquiring of management about risks of fraud and controls in place to address those 
risks.

► Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s 
processes over fraud.

► Considering the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address risk of 
fraud.

► testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the preparation of the financial 
statements.

► Evaluating accounting estimates for any evidence of management bias

► Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions

We did not identify any material weaknesses in controls or evidence of material management 
override.

We did not identify any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied.

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or outside 
both Councils’ normal course of business

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01
12

Significant Risk Conclusion

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be 
misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the public 
sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by 
the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should 
also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by 
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have identified an opportunity and incentive to capitalise 
expenditure under the accounting framework, to remove it from 
the general fund.

This could then result in funding of that expenditure, that should 
properly be defined as revenue, through inappropriate sources 
such as capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

We:

► Tested PPE additions to ensure that the expenditure incurred and capitalised was clearly 
capital in nature.

► Tested expenditure classified as REFCUS to ensure it met the classification requirements.

► Sought to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals transferring 
expenditure from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger.

► We utilised our data analytics capabilities to assist with our work, including journal entry 
testing.

Our testing did not identify any material misstatements from revenue and expenditure 
recognition.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Projected Misstatement Vale of White Horse

• We identified an error in the testing of a representative sample of capital grants received in advance.  
We extrapolated this to the remaining population, with a resulting difference of £99.9k

Judgemental Misstatement Vale of White Horse

• We identified the accumulated absences provision totalling £120k has remained as such since 2014/15 
with no movement. This accrual should be recalculated each year.

• Vale of White Horse CIL income understated by £0.584m in prior periods, which management chose to 
restate via a prior year adjustment. As this amount was not material, we would not expect 2018/19 
figures to be restated, but that this unrecorded 2018/19 income would be recognised in 2019/20 
instead

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01
13

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Other Key Findings Conclusion

Adjusted Differences South Oxfordshire District Council

• Upwards revaluations of finance leases as a lessor (long term debtors) incorrectly recorded as income 
to cost of services.  £2.160m

• Year end accrual in relation to REFCUS with no supporting evidence, and concluded to be incorrectly 
raised. £0.548m

• CIL income incorrectly accounted for on a cash basis instead of an accrual basis. Impact in FY 2019/20 
of £0.669m understatement of CIL income. 

• CIL income understated by £7.374m in prior periods, and 2018/19 comparative figures have been 
restated

• NNDR income overstated by £0.181m due to incorrect completion of CIPFA Council Tax Model

• Misclassification of investment income property allocated to "Development and regeneration“ instead 
of "income and expenditure in relation to investment properties“. £1.433m.

Adjusted Differences Vale of White Horse District Council

• Incorrect recording of property, plant and equipment valuation.  £0.300m

• Property classed as both investment property and Finance Lease (lessor).  £0.800m

• Year end accrual in relation to REFCUS with no supporting evidence, and concluded it was incorrectly 
raised. £0.860m

• CIL income incorrectly accounted for on a cash basis instead of an accrual basis. Impact in FY 2019/20 
of £0.961m understatement of CIL income. 

• NNDR income overstated by £0.271 and Council Tax income understated by £0.822m due to incorrect 
completion of CIPFA Council Tax Model

• Misclassification of business rates income incorrectly classified as Revenue Support Grant £0.200m.

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

14

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality South Oxfordshire District Council

We determined planning materiality to be £1.661m, which is 2% of gross revenue expenditure reported 
in the accounts.

Vale of White Horse District Council

We determined planning materiality to be £1.599m, which is 2% of gross revenue expenditure reported 
in the accounts.

We consider gross revenue expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in 
assessing the financial performance of both Council

Reporting threshold South Oxfordshire District Council

We agreed with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we would report to the Committee all 
audit differences in excess of £0.830m. 

Vale of White Horse District Council

We agreed with the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we would report to the Committee all 
audit differences in excess of £0.800m. 

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we 
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits.

► Related party transactions. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations.

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01
16

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Councils have put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in their use of resources. 
This is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper

arrangements for

securing value

for money

Informed

decision

making

Working with 

partners and 

third parties

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

We identified one significant risk in relation to these arrangements, relating to the impact on the 
Councils from leaving the 5 Councils contract.

We performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan looking at the transfer and transition 
arrangements. We did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Councils’ arrangements to 
ensure that they took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

We therefore issues an unqualified value for money conclusion.

We made an observation that the Councils’ finance team was lean, and that capacity should be kept 
under review. The unforeseen onset of the pandemic at the time of transition was a contextual 
circumstance that could not have been planned for. The Councils have already responded to this, 
and are recruiting to the team alongside further transitioning of services from their former 
outsourced supplier.

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to 
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in 
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider local authorities’ 
response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear 
evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of 
Covid-19 during the financial year would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in 
relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Whole of Government Accounts

We are required to perform the procedures specified by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Councils for Whole of 
Government Accounts purposes.

The Councils are both below the specified audit threshold of £500m. Therefore we were not required to perform any detailed audit procedures on the consolidation 
pack.

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Councils’ annual governance statements, identify any inconsistencies with the other information 
of which we are aware from our work, and consider whether they are misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern.

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in 
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as ones that require the Councils to consider at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Other Reporting Issues

18

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 30 November 2021. In our 
professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning 
regulatory and professional requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

During our audit, we identified an adjusted misstatements in relation to CIL income which stemmed from income being recognised on a cash basis rather than an 
accrual basis, as is required by the CIPFA Code. We judge that the Council’s internal control environment was not designed to identify such a misstatement, and that 
this represents a significant deficiency.

We have not identified any other significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial

statements of which you are not aware.

19

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

The statements above and on the prior page apply to each both South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 6

Focused on your 
future

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom introduces the application of new accounting standards in future years. The impact on the 
Councils is summarised in the table below. 

21

Focused on your future

Standard Issue Impact

IFRS 16 Leases IFRS 16 Leases was issued by the IASB in 2016. Its main impact is to remove 
(for lessees) the traditional distinction between finance leases and operating 
leases. Finance leases have effectively been accounted for as acquisitions (with 
the asset on the balance sheet, together with a liability to pay for the asset 
acquired). In contrast, operating leases have been treated as “pay as you go” 
arrangements, with rentals expensed in the year they are paid. IFRS 16 
requires all substantial leases to be accounted for using the acquisition 
approach, recognising the rights acquired to use an asset.

The new standard was not included in the 2019/20 CIPFA Code of 
Practice and has been delayed until 2022/23.

Until the revised 2022/23 Accounting Code is issued and any 
statutory overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty 
in this area.

However, what is clear is that the Councils will need to undertake a 
detailed exercise to identify all of their leases and capture the 
relevant information for them. The Councils must therefore ensure 
that all lease arrangements are fully documented.

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Audit Fees
Section 8

[Insert Client Name] 22

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Our proposed fee for 2019/20 is explained below and is subject to approval by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd.

23

Audit Fees – South Oxfordshire District Council

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work £37,103 £37,103 £37,103 £37,103

Changes in work required to address 
professional and regulatory requirements 
and scope associated with risk (see Note 1)

£29,575 £29,575 N/A N/A

Revised Proposed Scale Fee £66,678 £66,678 N/A N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues 
impacting 2018/19 and 2019/20 audits 
(see Note 2) 

TBC - - £28,371

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBC £66,678 £37,103 £65,474

Non-Audit Fee - Housing Benefit 
Certification Work 

£10,933 N/A N/A £9,433

Note 1
We have discussed with management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with a public 
sector organisation’s risk and complexity, and we have laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused this situation. We have quantified the 
implications of these factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 the scale fee has been re-
assessed to take these into account.

This additional fee has been discussed with management and is subject to review by the PSAA.

Note 2
We are in the process of quantifying the additional work we have undertaken, in particular with regard to the delays in completion of the 2019/20 audit; the audit 
issues that were identified and our work in resolving them; and our work in relation to the prior period adjustment made to the comparative figures. Once 
completed, we will discuss this with management and then be seeking seeking PSAA approval.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Our proposed fee for 2019/20 is explained below and is subject to approval by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd.

24

Audit Fees – Vale of White Horse District Council

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19

£

Total Audit Fee – Code work £36,289 £36,289 £36,289 £36,289

Changes in work required to address 
professional and regulatory requirements 
and scope associated with risk (see Note 1)

£30,829 £30,829 N/A N/A

Revised Proposed Scale Fee £67,118 £ 67,118 N/A N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues 
impacting 2018/19 and 2019/20 audits 
(see Note 2) 

TBC - - £22,533

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBC £66,678 £37,103 £58,822

Non-Audit Fee - Housing Benefit 
Certification Work 

£9,905 N/A N/A £10,903

Note 1
We have discussed with management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with a public 
sector organisation’s risk and complexity, and we have laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused this situation. We have quantified the 
implications of these factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 the scale fee has been re-
assessed to take these into account.

This additional fee has been discussed with management and is subject to review by the PSAA.

Note 2
We are in the process of quantifying the additional work we have undertaken, in particular with regard to the delays in completion of the 2019/20 audit; the audit 
issues that were identified and our work in resolving them; and our work in relation to the prior period adjustment made to the comparative figures. Once 
completed, we will discuss this with management and then be seeking seeking PSAA approval.

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



25

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6



South Oxfordshire District 
Council and Vale of White 
Horse District Council

Audit planning report 

Year ended 31 March 2021

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



2

January 2022

Dear Joint Audit & Governance Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as your auditor. Its purpose is to provide 
the Joint Audit & Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit in accordance with 
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our 
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 25 January 2022 as well as understand whether there are other matters which 
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Joint Audit & Governance Committee

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park
Milton, OX14 4SB

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee and management South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council (the Councils) in accordance with the 
statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and management of the Councils those matters we are required to state to 
them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Joint Audit & Governance Committee, and 
management of the Councils for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2020/21 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2020/21 audit  
strategy

01 01

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7



5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, through 
inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure

Fraud Risk
No change in risk 

or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified 
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that 
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by 
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most 
likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure, 
notable REFCUS and PPE Additions.

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud Risk
No change in risk 

or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud 
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and 
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Valuation of Land and Buildings Inherent Risk
No change in risk or 

focus

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP) 
represent significant balances in both Councils’ accounts and are subject to 
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is 
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to 
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet, covering both 
those assets that are revalued within the year and the continuing material 
accuracy of those valued in prior periods.

Pension Liability Valuation Inherent Risk No change in risk or 
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Councils 
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its 
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Oxfordshire County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and 
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their 
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of 
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 7



6

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Accounting for Covid-19 related 
grants

Inherent Risk
New risk in 

2020/21 Audit

The Councils have both received a significant level of government funding in the 
relation to Covid-19. There is a need for the Councils to ensure that they have 
recognised and accounted for these appropriately, taking into account any 
associated restrictions and conditions.

Accounting for Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) income

Inherent Risk
New risk in 

2020/21 Audit

We identified material errors in relation to CIL income in our 2019/20 audit. The 
errors were corrected by management, and we reported these as adjusted 
misstatements to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee in our 2019/20 audit 
results report in November 2021. Whilst management has corrected its 
accounting policy in relation to CIL income, due to the timing of when the error 
was identified, there remains a risk that the impact of the previous incorrect 
accounting policy is not quantified correctly and adjusted for in the 2020/21 
financial statements.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Joint Audit & 
Governance Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

The risks identified above are identical for both South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council.

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 7



7

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Materiality – South Oxfordshire District Council

Planning
materiality

£1.752m
Performance 

materiality

£0.876m
Audit

differences

£87.6K

Materiality has been set at £1.752m, which represents 2% of the current year gross expenditure on provision of services as per the draft 
financial statements of 2020/21. 

Performance materiality has been set at £0.876m, which represents 50% of materiality. We have used 50% of PM 
due to the volume of errors found in the 2019/20 and previous financial statements. 

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund) greater than £87.6k.  Other 
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Joint 
Audit & Governance Committee.

Materiality – Vale of White Horse District Council

Planning
materiality

£1.682m
Performance 

materiality

£0.841m
Audit

differences

£84.1K

Materiality has been set at £1.682m, which represents 2% of the current year gross expenditure on provision of services as per the draft 
financial statements of 2020/21. 

Performance materiality has been set at £0.841k, which represents 50% of materiality. We have used 50% of PM 
due to the volume of errors found in the 2019/20 and previous financial statements. 

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund) greater than £84.1k.  Other 
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Joint  
Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 7



8

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

▪ Our audit opinions on whether the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council give a true and fair view of the 
financial position as at 31 March 2021 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

▪ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Councils’ Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

▪ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
▪ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
▪ The quality of systems and processes;
▪ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
▪ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on 
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees  has not kept pace with 
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension 
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the value for money 
conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of Councils’ audit, we will discuss these with management as to the 
impact on the scale fee.

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 7



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 7



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 

What will we do?

We will:

•Test the balance of PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to 
ensure they are appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and 
that the expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; 

•Test the balance of Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under 
Statute (REFCUS) using lowered testing threshold to ensure that it 
transactions are correctly recorded and meet the criteria to be recorded as 
REFCUS;

•Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals 
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or from 
revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the year; and

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of 
fraud in revenue and expenditure 
recognition is most likely to occur 
through the inappropriate 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure. This would have the 
impact of reducing revenue 
expenditure and increasing 
additions to Property, Plant and 
Equipment or Revenue Expenditure 
Funder from Capital Under Statute 
(REFCUS).

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to 
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to 
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council 
Tax. This could then result in funding of that 
expenditure, that should properly be defined as 
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as 
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and 
expenditure recognition, through 
inappropriate capitalisation of 
revenue expenditure*

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 

What will we do?

We will:

• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of 
management’s processes over fraud.

• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to 
address the risk of fraud.

• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments 
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.

• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free 
of material misstatements whether caused by 
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in 
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of 
its ability to manipulate accounting records 
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent 
financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

We identify and respond to this fraud risk on 
every audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or 
error *

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 7



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings, and Investment Properties.

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and 
Investment Properties (IP) represent significant balances in 
the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes, 
impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is 
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply 
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet.

We will:

• Consider the work performed by the Councils’ valuers, including the adequacy of the scope of 
the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. floor 
plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key assumptions 
used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year 
rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment Property. We 
will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have occurred and whether 
these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review PPE assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining asset base 
is not materially misstated; 

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and

• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements.

• Use our audit specialists to evaluate the material accuracy of a sample of properties, as a direct 
result of impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 7



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus 

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the 
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements 
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
administered by Oxfordshire County Council. 

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and the 
Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Councils’ balance 
sheet. The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to 
the Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement 
and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the 
calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the 
assumptions underlying fair value estimates. 

We will:

• Liaise with the auditors of Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain 
assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to South 
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary including the assumptions they have 
used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any 
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Councils’ 
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 7



14

Audit Risks

Impact of changes in auditing standards

ISA 540  (Accounting Estimates)

ISA 540 (Revised) - Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures applies to audits of all accounting estimates in financial statements for periods beginning on 
or after December 15, 2019.

This revised ISA responds to changes in financial reporting standards and a more complex business environment which together have increased the importance of 
accounting estimates to the users of financial statements and introduced new challenges for preparers and auditors.

The revised ISA requires auditors to consider inherent risks associated with the production of accounting estimates. These could relate, for example, to the complexity of 
the method applied, subjectivity in the choice of data or assumptions or a high degree of estimation uncertainty. As part of this, auditors consider risk on a spectrum 
(from low to high inherent risk) rather than a simplified classification of whether there is a significant risk or not. At the same time, we expect the number of significant 
risks we report in respect of accounting estimates to increase as a result of the revised guidance in this area.

The changes to the standard may affect the nature and extent of information that we may request and will likely increase the level of audit work required, particularly in 
cases where an accounting estimate and related disclosures are higher on the spectrum of inherent risk. For example:

• We may place more emphasis on obtaining an understanding of the nature and extent of your estimation processes and key aspects of related policies and procedures. 
We will need to review whether controls over these processes have been adequately designed and implemented in a greater number of cases.

• We may provide increased challenge of aspects of how you derive your accounting estimates. For example, as well as undertaking procedures to determine whether 
there is evidence which supports the judgments made by management, we may also consider whether there is evidence which could contradicts them.

• We may make more focussed requests for evidence or carry out more targeted procedures relating to components of accounting estimates. This might include the 
methods or models used, assumptions and data chosen or how disclosures (for instance on the level of uncertainty in an estimate) have been made, depending on our 
assessment of where the inherent risk lies.

• We may ask for new or changed management representations compared to prior years.

To respond to these additional requirements:

• You may wish to consider retaining experts to assist with related work. You may also consider documenting key judgements and decisions in anticipation of auditor 
requests, to facilitate more efficient and effective discussions with the audit team.

PSAA have communicated to their opted-in bodies that there is an expected fee variation for the impact of this new standard.

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



15

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus 

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Accounting for Covid-19 Related Grants

The Councils have received a significant level of government funding in 
relation to Covid-19. Whilst there is no change in the CIPFA Code or 
accounting standard (IFRS 15) in respect of accounting for grant funding, 
the emergency nature of some of the grants received and in some cases 
the lack of clarity on any associated restrictions and conditions, means 
that the Council will need to apply a greater degree of assessment and 
judgement to determine the appropriate accounting treatment in the 
2020/21 statements.

We will:

• Consider the Councils’ judgement on grants received in relation to whether they are 
acting as:

▪ An agent, where it is determined that they are acting as an intermediary; or

▪ Principal, where the Councils have determined that they are acting on their 
own behalf.

• For grants received where the Councils acted as principal, we will further consider 
whether any associated restrictions and conditions have been met and that grants 
have been claimed and recognised in accordance with the scheme rules.

• Check the Councils have adequately disclosed grant income received in the year, 
under both principal and agent arrangements.

Accounting for Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Income

We identified material errors in relation to CIL income in our 2019/20 
audits. The errors were corrected by management, and we reported these 
as adjusted misstatements to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee in 
our 2019/20 audit results report in November 2021. Whilst management 
has corrected its accounting policy in relation to CIL income, due to the 
timing of when the error was identified, there remains a risk that the 
impact of the previous incorrect accounting policy is not quantified 
correctly and adjusted for in the 2020/21 financial statements.

We will:

• Test CIL income using lowered testing thresholds and ensure income is appropriately 
supported by documentary evidence,

• Test cut-off to ensure CIL income is being accounted for in the correct financial year, 
and in accordance with the accounting treatments specified in the CIPFA Code.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7



16

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 7



17

Value for money

Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Councils are required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and 
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Councils are required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and how this has 
operated during the period in an annual governance statement. In preparing its annual governance statement, the Councils tailor the content to reflect their own 
individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in support of 
that framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code

Under the 2020 Code we are still required to consider whether the Councils have put in place ‘proper 
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. However, there is no 
longer one overall evaluation criterion on which we need to conclude. Instead the 2020 Code requires us to 
design our work to provide sufficient assurance to enable us to report to the Councils a commentary against 
specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Councils have in place to secure value for 
money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the Councils plan and manage their resources to ensure they can continue to deliver their services;

• Governance
How each Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Councils use information about their costs and performance to improve the way each manages and 
delivers its services.

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



18

Value for money risks

Planning and identifying VFM risks

The NAO’s guidance notes require us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Councils’ 
arrangements, in order to enable us to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses in 
those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. This is a change to 2015 Code guidance notes, where the NAO required auditors, as part of planning, to 
consider the risk of reaching an incorrect conclusion in relation to the overall criterion.

In considering the Councils’ arrangements, we are required to consider:

• The Councils’ Annual Governance Statement;

• Evidence that the Councils’ arrangements were in place during the reporting period;

• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;

• The work of inspectorates and other bodies; and

• Any other evidence source that we regard as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment of what 
constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in arrangements is a 
matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it: 

• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation; 

• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or 

• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on 
action/improvement plans. 

We should also be informed by a consideration of: 

• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council; 

• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves (where applicable), or impact on budgets or cashflow 
forecasts; 

• The impact of the weakness on the Councils’ reported performance; 

• Whether the issue has been identified by the Councils’ own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;  

• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review; 

• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State; 

• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;  

• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and 

• The length of time a Council has had to respond to the issue. 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



19

Value for money risks

Responding to identified risks

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to determine 
whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge of management’s 
assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Joint Audit & Goverance Committee.

Reporting on VFM

In addition to the commentary on arrangements, where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources the 2020 Code has the same requirement as the 2015 Code in that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the 
financial statements.

However, a new requirement under the 2020 Code is for us to include the commentary on arrangements in a new Auditor’s Annual Report. The 2020 Code states that 
the commentary should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the Council’s attention or the wider public. This should include 
details of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been 
implemented satisfactorily.

The new Code promotes more timely reporting by auditors. So where we have sufficient evidence to determine that there is a significant weakness on VFM related 
arrangements we can report that weakness, and an associated recommendation for improvement, at that time and not wait until we issue our Audit Results Report on 
the audit of the statement of accounts.

Status of our 2020/21 VFM Planning

Delays in the completion of the 2019/20 audit have impacted on our planning time. Our risk assessment is therefore not yet complete. However, based on the planning 
procedures we have completed to date, we expect to include in our plan one significant risk in relation to the significant budget gaps in both councils’ latest Medium 
Term Financial Plan and the continued drawdown of reserves. We expect this risk to fall into the criteria “Financial sustainability:  How the Councils plan and manage 
their resources to ensure they can continue to deliver their services”.

We will update the Committee once our risk assessment is complete to confirm whether any further risks have been identified, and the work which will be undertaken to 
address them. 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 7



20

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



21

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2020/21 has been set at £1.752m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s current year gross expenditure on provision of services
as per the draft financial statements of 2020/21. It will be reassessed throughout the
audit process. We have set materiality using gross revenue expenditure as our
expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are focussed on how it uses its
resources to provide services to local people. We have used 2% based on our
assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public interest, lack of planned
reorganisations and sources of borrowing .We have provided supplemental information
about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£87.6m
Planning

materiality

£1.752m

Performance 
materiality

£0.876m
Audit

differences

£87.6k

Materiality – South Oxfordshire District Council

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£0.876m which represents 50% of planning materiality. This takes into 
account the level of issues raised during our 2019/20 audit. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund. 

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Committee, 
or are important from a qualitative perspective

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for 
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances 
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 7



22

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2020/21 has been set at £1.682m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s current year gross expenditure on provision of services
as per the draft financial statements of 2020/21. It will be reassessed throughout the
audit process. We have set materiality using gross revenue expenditure as our
expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are focussed on how it uses its
resources to provide services to local people. We have used 2% based on our
assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public interest, lack of planned
reorganisations and sources of borrowing .We have provided supplemental information
about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£84.1m
Planning

materiality

£1.682m

Performance 
materiality

£0.841m
Audit

differences

£84.1k

Materiality – Vale of White Horse District Council

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at 
£0.841m which represents 50% of planning materiality. This takes into 
account the level of issues raised during our 2019/20 audit. 

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet and collection fund. 

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Committee, 
or are important from a qualitative perspective

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for 
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances 
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less 
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the 
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committee confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



23

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 7



24

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Councils’ financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we 
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 7



25

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2020/21 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required 
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated. 

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for 
improvement, to management and the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit:
We will meet with the Internal Audit Manager, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports, together 
with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 7



26

Audit team06 01

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7



27

Audit team

Audit team 

Audit team structure:

Kevin Sutter

Associate Partner

ksuter@uk.ey.com

Tom Archer

Manager

tarcher1@uk.ey.com

* Key Audit Partner

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to identify continuing improvements in communication and processes for the 2020/21 audit. 

We will continue to keep our audit approach under review to streamline it where possible.

Edlyn Yambot

Lead Senior

Edlyn.yambot@uk.ey.com

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 7



28

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the 
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts: 

- Lambert Smith Hampton as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Auditor Specialists:

- EY Real Estate

Pensions disclosure
PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists

Hymans Robertson– Actuary to Oxfordshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and 
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular 
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 7



29

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 7



30

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2021.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit Committee Chair as 
appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Jan MarFebDec Apr

Planning Substantive testing

Walkthroughs

Audit planning report

Reporting our independence, risk 
assessment, planned audit 

approach and the scope of our audit

Annual Results Report

Reporting our conclusions on key 
judgements and estimates and 

confirmation of our independence

Auditor’s Annual Report

The Auditor’s Annual Report, which 
includes VfM commentary, will be 

provided following completion of our 
audit procedures

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 7



31

Independence08 01

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 7



32

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional 
wording should be included in the communication 
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 7



33

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Councils.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with any policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.

At the time of writing, we have proposed to undertake the role of reporting accountant for the DWP’s Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP). We have determined 
appropriate safeguards. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements.

There are no self review threats at the date of this report. 

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Councils.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 7



34

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.

There are no other threats at the date of this report. 

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 30 June 2021: 

EY UK 2021 Transparency Report | EY UK

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021


35

Appendices09 01

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 7



36

Appendix A – Fees (South Oxfordshire District Council)
The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Description

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Total Audit Fee – Code work £37,103 £37,103 £37,103

Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk 
(see Note 1)

£29,575 N/A £29,575

Revised Proposed Scale Fee £66,678 N/A £66,678

Scale Fee Variation – new VFM arrangements (Note 2a) £10,000 - £19,000 - N/A

Scale Fee Variation – revised ISA 540 (Note 2a) £4,400 - N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues impacting 
2019/20 and 2020/21 audits (see Note 2b) 

TBD N/A TBD

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBD £37,103 TBD

None Audit Fee - Housing Benefit Certification Work £10,500 N/A £10,933

Note 1
We have discussed with the management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with a 
public sector organisation’s risk and complexity and laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused that. We have quantified the implications of these 
factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 and 2020/21 the scale fee has been re-assessed to 
take these into account. The 2019/20 additional fee is subject to approval by the PSAA.

Note 2
We are in the process of quantifying the additional work we have undertaken in 2019/20. Once completed, we will discuss this with management and then be 
seeking seeking PSAA approval.

In 2020/21, we expect the new VFM arrangements and revised ISA 540 (estimates) to result in a scale fee variation. PSAA have published guidance on these 
matters and advise for minimum additional fees, for a district council, of £6,000 - £11,000 in respect of the new VFM arrangements, and a minimum of £2,500 in 
respect of the revised ISA 540.

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 7



37

Appendix A – Fees (Vale of White Horse District Council)
The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government.  

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Description

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2019/20

£ 

Total Audit Fee – Code work £36,289 £36,289 £36,289

Changes in work required to address professional and 
regulatory requirements and scope associated with risk 
(see Note 1)

£30,829 N/A £30,289

Revised Proposed Scale Fee £67,118 N/A £66,678

Scale Fee Variation – new VFM arrangements (Note 2a) £10,000 - £19,000 - N/A

Scale Fee Variation – revised ISA 540 (Note 2a) £4,400 - N/A

Scale Fee Variation due to one-off issues impacting 
2019/20 and 2020/21 audits (see Note 2b) 

TBD N/A TBD

Total Proposed Audit Fee TBD £36,289 TBD

None Audit Fee - Housing Benefit Certification Work £10,500 N/A £9,905

Note 1
We have discussed with the management and the Joint Audit and Governance Committee that we do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with a 
public sector organisation’s risk and complexity and laid out the impact of regulatory changes which have caused that. We have quantified the implications of these 
factors on our assessment of the baseline fee to deliver a sustainable high-quality external audit. For 2019/20 and 2020/21 the scale fee has been re-assessed to 
take these into account. The 2019/20 additional fee is subject to approval by the PSAA.

Note 2
We are in the process of quantifying the additional work we have undertaken in 2019/20. Once completed, we will discuss this with management and then be 
seeking seeking PSAA approval.

In 2020/21, we expect the new VFM arrangements and revised ISA 540 (estimates) to result in a scale fee variation. PSAA have published guidance on these 
matters and advise for minimum additional fees, for a district council, of £6,000 - £11,000 in respect of the new VFM arrangements, and a minimum of £2,500 in 
respect of the revised ISA 540.

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 7



38

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Joint Audit & Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of 
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Joint Audit & Governance Committee

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Joint Audit & Governance Committee.

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7



39

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee to determine whether they have 
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 7



40

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit Planning Report 

Audit Results Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Joint Audit & Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial 
statements and that the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results reportP
age 73

A
genda Item

 7



41

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Audit results report

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 7



42

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our 
understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 7



43

Appendix C

Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines:

• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 7



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 25 January 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Internal audit activity report quarter three 

2021/22  

 

Recommendations 
 
(a)  That members note the content of the report 
 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 

at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken 
where necessary.  

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), email victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Strategic objectives 
  
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 

strategic objectives. 
 
 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Background  
 
4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.  After each 
audit assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the 
control environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements 
where applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses.  

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following: 

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.  
 
Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied. 
 
Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk. 
 
Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk. 
 
Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls. 
 

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings: 

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action 

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action 

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control 

 
Completed audit reports 
 
7. As at 17 January 2022, since the last joint audit and governance committee meeting the 

following audits and follow up reviews have been completed: 
 

Completed Audits: 6 
Full Assurance: 0 
Substantial Assurance: 0 
Satisfactory Assurance: 5 
Limited Assurance: 1 
Nil Assurance: 0 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



Audit Area 
Assurance 
Rating T

o
ta

l 
R

e
c

s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k

  

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

L
o

w
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

Joint 

Property management 21/22      
(appendix 1) 

Limited 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 

Car Parking & Enforcement 
21/22 

Satisfactory 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 

Cash Office 21/22 Satisfactory 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 

Council Fees & Charges 21/22 Satisfactory 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 

Creditor Payments 21/22 Satisfactory 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 

Land Charges 21/22 Satisfactory 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 

SODC  

None         

VWHDC 

None         

 
Follow Up Reviews 

Audit Area 

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o
. 

o
f 

R
e

c
s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li
c

a
b

le
 

Joint 

Information Security 19/20 Limited 7 1 1 4 1 0 

SODC 

None        

VWHDC 

None        

 
8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 

audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee.  

 
9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 

and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.   

 
10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 

officer and the relevant member portfolio holder.  In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team. 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-key financial audits 
to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   All key financial 
system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual assurance cycle. 

 
Financial implications 
 
12. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
13. None. 
 
Risks 
 
14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 

 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



APPENDIX 1 
 

1. Property Management 2021/22 

 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls, and the 

management of risk in relation to property compliance management.  The 
audit has been undertaken in accordance with the 2021/2022 audit plan 
agreed with the joint audit and governance committee of South Oxfordshire 
District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).  
The audit approach is provided in the audit framework in Appendix 1. 
 

1.2 The following objective areas have been covered during the course of this 
review: 

 
 

Objective area Proposed high level scope 

Obj1: Policies and 
procedures 

 Confirm what policies and procedures are 
in place covering property management. 

  

Obj2: Contracts and 
Services 
 

 Establish what specialist services and 
contracts are in place to maintain key 
legislative and regulatory standards and 
obtain copies. 
 

Obj3: Safety controls 
and routines 

 

 Establish what checks are in place to 
maintain a safe environment and that these 
are performed in line with agreed 
operational requirements and comply to 
regulatory standards. 
 

Obj4: Substantiating 
regulatory checks 
 

 Establish whether site-based checks are 
reviewed and/or regularly submitted to the 
property team to monitor compliance and 
maintain a central record. 
 

Obj5: Compliance 
performance reporting 
 

 Establish what monitoring activities are in 
place, review any supporting schedules 
and validate that tasks have been 
completed as required. 
 

Obj6: Inspections, 
monitoring, and stock 
condition surveys 
 

 Establish whether regular monitoring 
and/or inspections take place and what 
checks are conducted. 

 
2. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS 
 
2.1 Property compliance management has not previously been subject to a 

review. 
 
 Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 
 
3. 2021/2022 OVERALL AUDIT ASSURANCE 
 
3.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 

internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk. 
 

3.2 Nine joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  One high risk, 
seven medium risk and one low risk. 

 

Objective area 
Recommendations 

Area assurance 
Low Medium High 

Obj1: Policies and 
procedures  
 

 2  Satisfactory 

Obj2: Contracts and 
Services 
 

  1* Limited 

Obj3: Safety controls and 
routines 

 

 3  Satisfactory 

Obj4: Substantiating 
regulatory checks 
 

  1* Limited  

Obj5: Compliance 
performance reporting  
 

1   Substantial 
 

Obj6: Inspections, 
monitoring, and stock 
condition surveys 

 2  Satisfactory 

Totals 1 7 1  

 
*Recommendation 3 is reported across objective 2 and 4 (High). 

 
4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
4.1 The council has a duty to ensure that buildings and land under their control 

comply with all relevant statutory, regulatory, and corporate standards.  
 

4.2 The council should have robust procedures in place to control and manage 
what checks and testing is completed within the buildings they have legal 
responsibility for, including buildings that are used by staff, clients, and 
tenants.  A wide range of health and safety responsibilities also fall on 
building occupiers. 
 

4.3 Policies and procedures set out at a corporate level are frequently delegated 
to responsible premises managers to ensure that regular checks and control 
measures are carried out and recorded. 
 

4.4 The council is faced with the situation where day to day responsibility 
and the majority of available resources may be delegated across multiple 
services, including, facilities, property, the operational service team 
responsible for the property, and the individual premises occupier. Ultimately, 
however, accountability remains at a corporate level with the council. 

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



4.5 The council, as landlord, and the operational services functioning within the 
individual premises, are required to conduct a wide variety of regulatory 
testing and compliance checks, which may differ by property, dependant on 
individual site complexities. This is generally monitored by site inspections 
and service contracts maintained by the central property team where the 
councils are wholly responsible. Complexities arise where the councils may 
hold part-responsibility for compliance, or reliance for checks is solely on the 
individual service team and/or their tenants. 
 

4.6 The councils have recently realigned the property service so that they are 
best placed to deliver the councils’ objectives, and to reflect the direction of 
travel towards a corporate landlord model to manage the property portfolio 
more effectively.  It is noted that although the structure has been realigned in 
name, the functions, appropriate resources, and service level agreements of 
a corporate landlord model have not been defined as yet by the organisation. 
A new head of service role has been created that is more property focussed 
and the council are actively recruiting for a Head of Development and 
Corporate Landlord. 

 
5. MAIN FINDINGS 
 
5.1 Objective 1: Policies and procedures 

 
5.1.1 Polices and procedural documents associated to property management 

are published on the council’s intranet, Jarvis. Per our inspection, records 
are outdated, and the last review documented in October 2017.  
 

5.1.2 Procedural records list contact details for the previous facilities contractor 
(Vinci) and reference policies that are no longer published on Jarvis. 
Furthermore, of the eight polices published on Jarvis relating to property 
management, seven are overdue a review; the oldest dated June 2016. 
 

5.1.3 A selection of job descriptions were obtained from the HR team across a 
number of teams that operate and manage services within council 
properties, to establish whether operational compliance duties and 
responsibilities were documented within individual roles. Upon review, 
generalised responsibilities were documented at service manager level, 
with more detailed duties and responsibilities recorded for operational 
officers. 
 

5.1.4 There is no centralised record of training for individuals that conduct and 
monitor property compliance related tasks across council properties and 
services.  The property team has created a training matrix that details the 
training completed by individuals within their team. Review demonstrated 
the training elements delivered were not consistent for all officers 
assigned roles relating to operational compliance and property 
management. It was also not clear from records that regular refresher 
training was in place to ensure officers maintain a good knowledge of safe 
operational practices.  
 

5.1.5 Additionally, training for responsible officers that manage day to day 
operational functions at council operated properties is not in place. A 
centralised suite of training relating specifically to compliance 
management routines, including fire safety checks, legionella, asbestos 
and COSHH controls is not currently available. 
 

5.1.6 Area assurance: Satisfactory  Page 83

Agenda Item 8



Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 1 and 2). 
 

5.2 Objective 2: Contracts and services 
 

5.2.1 The councils have in place a variety of maintenance and servicing contracts 
with several specialist contractors to assist the management of legislative 
compliance in relation to property and asset management. These contracts 
form part of the planned preventative maintenance schedule (PPM) to assist 
monitoring and management of such requirements.  
This includes: 

 Fire safety; 

 Water treatment; 

 Asbestos; 

 Electrical safety including PAT and EIRC (fixed wiring); 

 Lifts; 

 Lifting equipment; and 

 Gas safety. 
 

5.2.2 Records to support the completion of servicing and/or legislative testing are 
not fully retained on the council’s Computer Aided Facilities Management 
(CAFM) System, Concerto. Where some contractors rely on publishing their 
results within their own online portal, these records are not consistently 
transferred to the individual property site records on the Concerto system. As 
a result, records become fragmented across several data share-points and 
systems, presenting a risk that any findings, results, and potential 
management actions relating to specialist recommendations, may not be 
suitably disseminated.  
 

5.2.3 The property team maintain a separate spreadsheet, independent of the 
Concerto CAFM system, for ease of look up for the completion of specialist 
services and PPM schedules. The Service Contract Inclusions document 
holds details for multiple properties for which the council hold responsibility for 
legislative compliance checks and testing.  

 

5.2.4 Review of the Service Contract Inclusions document and Concerto system 
identified multiple properties with omissions in historic records, some of which 
have now been programmed and are awaiting initial testing of required 
legislative checks. Furthermore, where scheduled servicing and testing had to 
be postponed due to access issues, works remain outstanding with no date of 
completion recorded at the time of review.  

 

5.2.5 Area assurance: Limited  
One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Rec 3). 
 

5.3 Objective 3: Safety controls and routines 

 
5.3.1 Health and safety compliance inspections are conducted by the property team 

and individual service teams for property assets owned and operated by the 
council. This includes individual properties, shared properties, and land (see 
5.6.1). 
 

5.3.2 A schedule of property inspections was provided to internal audit, which 
demonstrated that all council assets were programmed to receive an Page 84

Agenda Item 8



inspection over the course of the next two years (to July 2023). However, 
historic records to support completion were not routinely retained on the 
centralised CAFM system, Concerto. 
 

5.3.3 Furthermore, uncertainty over who holds responsibility for particular 
compliance checks was conveyed by several service teams during 
discussions. Particularly where responsibilities may be split between the 
service team delivering the operational function, and the property team who 
manage specialist servicing contracts and planned preventative maintenance 
schedules.  
 

5.3.4 The recently created Statutory Compliance Agreement documents that clearly 
define the split of compliance responsibilities across the service teams have 
been introduced by the property team, but had not been rolled out across all 
service areas at the time of review. 
 

5.3.5 For properties that are leased and/or shared (where the councils act in a 
landlord capacity) letters have been evidenced as sent on occasion to tenants 
to obtain assurance that required statutory compliance testing and checks are 
being conducted, (as per the individual lease agreement). However, it has 
been asserted that emphasis should be on the lease agreement itself and 
associated employment laws (The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974), that 
responsibility lies with the occupying tenant to ensure compliance and a safe 
environment for employees.  
 

5.3.6 Internal audit believes that being pro-active and consistent in this area would 
be beneficial to the councils and that demonstrating a willingness to peruse 
assurance that tenants are complying to legislative standards, mitigates the 
risk of a potential major incident occurring and should be considered best 
practice. 
 

5.3.7 Routine landlord inspections have not been taking place due to the surveying 
team operating with a reduced capacity from June to November 2020, and the 
impact of Covid-19, resulting in a backlog of inspections. The team has 
recruited further team members and is now in a position to reinstate a regular 
inspection routine. 
 

5.3.8 Area assurance: Satisfactory  
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 4 - 6). 
 

5.4 Objective 4: Substantiating regulatory checks 
 

5.4.1 As reported within objective two, the councils have a variety of contracts in 
place relating to property maintenance and specialist services associated to 
legislative checks and compliance management for which the councils hold 
responsibility. 
   

5.4.2 Review of the Service Contract Inclusions document suggests that some 
council owned properties had previously not been included for some aspects 
of scheduled PPM, but are due to be included for PPM from (May) 2021.  

 
5.4.3 A review of historic records for service team properties, including mobile 

home parks, public conveniences, temporary housing, and community centres 
were not consistently available on Concerto. Further discussion highlighted 
that some specialist service providers, upload their servicing and test results 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



to their own online portal, or records were held independently by the service 
teams. 

 

5.4.4 As a result, documents are not consistently retained in a centralised system 
and loaded onto the individual site information on Concerto. As such, there is 
a risk that records may not be reviewed by service teams/venue managers in 
a timely manner where management actions may be required. 

 

5.4.5 Area assurance: Limited  

One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
3). 

 
5.5 Objective 5: Compliance performance reporting  

 
5.5.1 Specialist contractor servicing and planned preventative maintenance (PPM) 

schedules are monitored by the property team. A spreadsheet listing council 
properties that are included within the PPM schedule, details the dates of the 
last and next inspection. 
 

5.5.2 Site based inspections are monitored and scheduled for each council property 
within an additional spreadsheet, that is also retained by the property team. 
This also lists the details of the last and next inspection due dates.      
 

5.5.3 A centralised report that details compliance performance by individual 
property and/or service area is not currently in place or circulated. If such a 
report was implemented, this may assist raising awareness of compliance 
standards across council properties and services, and ensure greater visibility 
and adherence to legislative requirements. 
 

5.5.4 Area assurance: Substantial  

One recommendation has been made as a result of our work in this area (Rec 
7). 

 
5.6 Objective 6: Inspections, monitoring, and stock condition surveys 

 
5.6.1 A two-year programme for health and safety inspections is scheduled against 

all council property assets, due for completion in July 2023.  
 

5.6.2 Per review of the Inspections Trackers at the time of review (August 2021), of 
the 657 (311 SODC and 346 VWHDC) property assets listed, 193 (110 SODC 
and 83 VWHDC) or 29% had been completed, 455 (198 SODC and 257 
VWHDC) or 69% of property asset inspections remain outstanding and nine 
(three SODC and six VWHDC) or 2% were N/A. It is noted that historic 
records were not consistently retained on the CAFM system, Concerto. 
 

5.6.3 A sample of 20 (ten SODC and ten VWHDC) properties were selected at 
random to establish what supporting compliance records were present and 
held centrally on the Concerto CAFM system. The sample selection was 
based on the perceived higher risks associated to the site location and 
consideration of public and staff attendance at the sites. 
 

5.6.4 Per review of sampled properties, records to support the completion of 
compliance checks and supporting evidence of remedial works for 
unsatisfactory testing, was not consistently available within the Concerto 

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



CAFM system. As a result, it could not be established whether all properties 
met the required testing and legislative standards. 
 

5.6.5 Stock condition surveys were not evidenced as being regularly completed for 
sampled council properties and records were not consistently available on the 
Concerto CAFM system. 
 

5.6.6 Area assurance: Satisfactory  
Two recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 8 and 9). 

 
6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
 
6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for 

their assistance with the audit. 
 
 

  

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 Audit recommendations have been assigned a risk rating, based on the 

below 3x3 risk matrix.  The risks identified in each recommendation are 
examined to determine: 

 the impact the risk would have against achieving the objective; and 

 the likelihood that the event will occur  
 

 
 
7.2 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 

recommendations, in line with the 3x3 risk matrix, according to their level 
of priority as follows: 
 

 
Risk rating 3x3 risk score Recommendation(s) 

 High risk 7-9 Rec 3 

 Medium risk 4-6 Recs 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 8 and 9 

 Low risk 2-3 Recs 7 

 Very low risk 1 No verbal 
recommendations raised 
during audit fieldwork 

 
  

Critical 

(>10%)
6 8 9

Major

(2-10%)
2/3 5 7

Manageable 

(<2%)
1 2/3 4

Remote 

(<10%)

Possible

(10-50%)

Likely

(>50%)

LIKELIHOOD

IM
P

A
C

T

3x3 RISK MATRIX

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 

Obj1: Policies and procedures Risk Rating: Medium  

Risk Score: [4]  1. Policies and procedures 

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of documents published on 
Jarvis, the following is noted: 

 All property management guidance 
documents are dated as last review in 
October 2017. 

 The previous facilities contractor (Vinci) 
is listed as the service provider within 
two documents, (the Asbestos guidance 
document and Legionella policy). 

 The Asbestos guidance document refers 
officers to review an Asbestos Policy. 
The associated policy is not published 
on Jarvis. 

 
Additionally, of the eight policies published 
on Jarvis, associated to property 
management, seven were identified as 
overdue a review.  
 
Risk(s)  
A lack of formal guidance for officers, may 
result in inconsistencies, errors, and lack of 
accountability. 
If the procedural guidance is not in line with 
current legislation, there is a risk that the 
councils are not following legal 
requirements. 
 

a) Information pages, 
guidance documents and 
associated polices 
published on Jarvis to be 
reviewed in coordination 
with corporate health & 
safety, and updated to 
ensure relevance to 
operational practices and 
accuracy in current 
procedures.  
 

b) Policies and guidance 
documents to be version 
controlled and reviewed at 
regular intervals to 
operational practices and 
accuracy in current 
procedures.  
 

 

Health & Safety Advisor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Health & Safety Advisor 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
(a) Agreed that a review and overhaul of the policies and procedures is well 

overdue and necessary to ensure the councils have consistent standards 
and guidance for property compliance to support officers managing their 
assets across the councils.   
Originally these documents were created by the councils Health & Safety 
officer. In the first instance a discussion is required to determine who is 
responsible for leading on these documents and their future reviews and 
updates in the newly realigned structure.  However, regardless of who is 
responsible it should take a collaborative approach of officers with both 
H&S knowledge and management and operating of buildings to update 
(and extending where necessary) these guidance documents.  It may be 
appropriate for this to form part of the councils Health and Safety forum to 
review, monitor and update.  Health and Safety needs to be embedded in 
the councils culture and structure for its approach to property management 
across the whole organisation. 

 
The proposed structure review and gap analysis work being proposed as 
part of the design phase of the corporate landlord model will also assist in 
determining how the corporate H&S and property compliance function 
should work under the corporate landlord model.   

 
(b) Once agreed on the primary lead for these policies and procedures they 

need to be managed, monitored updated and reviewed in accordance with 
the relevant industry standards. 

 
Management response: Property project management team leader and 
People & Culture Manager 

 
 
A review of existing 
policies/guidance will be 
undertaken in Q1 2022 – 
list of all relevant 
documents created 
 
(April 2022) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agree owner for each 
document and/or working 
group including 
stakeholders (i.e. H&S, 
Property etc.) and timeline 
to update these. Page 89

Agenda Item 8



 
Liaise with Unison/SMT, 
where necessary 
 
(June 2022) 
 
NB: Timeline for 
completion of all updates 
unknown until first action 
has been completed 
 

 

Obj1: Policies and procedures Risk Rating: Medium  

Risk Score: [4]  2. Training 

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per review of the property team’s training 
matrix, there are some training/knowledge 
gaps across the team that should be 
reviewed to ensure consistency in safe 
operational practices and compliance 
controls. 
 
Training for responsible officers that manage 
day to day operational functions at council 
operated properties is not currently in place. 
Regular training relating to compliance 
management routines, including fire safety 
checks, legionella, asbestos and COSHH 
controls is not currently available. 
 
Risk(s)  
A lack of training may result in errors and 
unsafe working practices. 
 

a) In coordination with HR, 
review that adequate 
training is available and 
provided to individuals to 
conduct operational duties 
safely in respect of 
property management 
compliance. 
 

b) Establish and maintain a 
record of refresher training 
to ensure officers maintain 
good knowledge of safe 
operational practices and 
to ensure procedures may 
be reviewed following any 
changes to legislative 
standards. 
 

Strategic HR Business 
Partner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Strategic HR Business 
Partner 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
(a) The councils need to develop a robust corporate training matrix in relation 

to property related health and safety.  The training should be based on the 
requirements of roles and responsibilities of staff who manage and/or 
operate the councils assets.   

 
This should be managed, coordinated, budgeted and recorded centrally by 
HR, but working in partnership with the Development and Corporate 
Landlord service managers and the service manager responsible for 
housing. One of the key deliverables of the Corporate Landlord Model 
design phase is to complete a structure review and gap analysis that will 
support in defining functioning job descriptions for each role and key tasks 
and responsibilities to enable officers to map against training needs and 
competencies requirements.  

 
(b) The HR system and/or Leah should have the capacity to manage and 

maintain training records including notifications or reporting on expiry 
dates to ensure refresher training is completed.  This system will also 
support the budgeting process for training needs. 

 
Management response: Property project management team leader and 
People & Culture Manager 
 

 
 
Targeting June 2022 – 
A reasonable timeframe 
based on the design phase 
of the CLM and gap 
analysis workstream 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous following above 
action being executed 
 
 

 
 
 Page 90

Agenda Item 8



Obj2: Contracts and Services Risk Rating: High  

Risk Score: [7]  3.Servicing and maintenance records 

Findings Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 

Records to support the completion of 
servicing and/or legislative testing are not 
fully retained on the council’s Computer 
Aided Facilities Management (CAFM) 
System, Concerto.  

Where some contractors rely on publishing 
their results within their own online portal, 
these records are not consistently 
transferred to the individual property site 
records on the Concerto system.  

As a result, records become fragmented 
across several data share-points and 
systems, presenting a risk that any findings, 
results, and potential management actions 
relating to specialist recommendations, may 
not be suitably disseminated.  

A review of historic records for service team 
properties, including mobile home parks, 
public conveniences, temporary housing, 
and community centres were not 
consistently available on Concerto.  

 
Risk(s)  

If contracts are not in place to provide 
specialist services to maintain legislative 
and regulatory conditions, there is an 
increased risk of harm, enforcement action, 
fines, and reputational damage. 

 

a) A full review of properties 
where the councils hold 
responsibility should be 
undertaken to ensure that 
there are appropriate 
service contracts in place to 
ensure full adherence to 
regulatory and legislative 
standards. 
 

b) Officers should ensure that 
where servicing and/or 
testing at premises has 
been postponed, suitable 
arrangements are in place 
to ensure timely completion 
of any outstanding works 
required.  
 

c) Officers should ensure that 
all servicing and/or testing 
records are 
published/uploaded 
centrally onto Concerto in a 
timely manner, so any 
management actions may 
be reviewed and 
implemented as required. 

Property Asset Manager 
(currently vacant) to lead 
with support from service 
managers and team 
leaders responsible for 
councils assets (buildings 
and land) 
 
 
 
Assigned to the identified 
responsible officer within 
the SLA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Assigned to the identified 
responsible officer within 
the SLA 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
(a) The property team have already been introducing ‘Service Level 

Agreements (SLAs)’ for assets managed by other service teams to provide 
clear roles and responsibilities for compliance arrangements i.e., what is 
managed centrally and what the service teams are required to deliver.  
This work will be further progressed under the new Corporate landlord 
model to provide these agreements for all assets to ensure that the 
compliance responsibility split for each asset are known, agreed and being 
undertaken by the relevant persons. 

 
(b) To be included in the Facilities SLA (formerly known as the property 

agreement) and assigned to the identified responsible officer.  
 

A KPI to be included in the SLA stating that “Any statutory compliance task 
that is postponed must be re-booked by the responsible officer within 48 
hours of the cancellation date (not the appointment date unless the same). 
The reason for postponement and the new visit arrangements are to be 
noted on the concerto task for audit purpose.”   

 
(c) Under the SLA split of responsibility it should clearly define how 

documents are to be managed, checked and uploaded to Concerto as the 
central depository.  Following the project to upgrade Concerto the Councils 
appointed contractors will be able to upload directly through the suppliers 
portal.  This will reduce resource workloads for the management of this 
process. 

 
Management response: Property project management team leader 

 
 
Workstream aligned to 
Corporate Landlord Model 
– design and 
Implementation phase 
once approved.  Likely to 
start in April 2022. 
 
 
 
Best practice to implement 
immediately, but will need 
to be formally captured 
within the SLA’s. 
 
 
 
 
 
Best practice to implement 
immediately, but will need 
to be formally captured 
within the SLA’s 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 

Obj3: Safety controls and routines Risk Rating: Medium  

Risk Score: [4]  4. Property compliance responsibilities  

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 

Uncertainty and confusion over which 
service team holds responsibility for 
particular compliance checks was conveyed 
by several service teams during discussions, 
where responsibilities may be split between 
the service team delivering the operational 
function and the property team who manage 
specialist servicing contracts and planned 
preventative maintenance schedules. 

 

Risk(s)  

Where there is uncertainty and assumptions 
made regarding required testing 
responsibilities, there is a risk that site-based 
checks are not maintained increasing the risk 
of harm, enforcement action, fines, and 
reputational damage. 

If sufficient checks are not performed, there 
is a risk that non-operating and faulty 
systems, and items of poor physical 
condition will not be identified. 

 

A review of assets to be 
conducted and where there 
may be contention of 
associated responsibilities, 
appropriate controls to be 
implemented to ensure there is 
clear ownership and 
acknowledgment of compliance 
management across services.   

 
 

Property Asset Manager 
(currently vacant) to lead 
with support from service 
managers and team 
leaders responsible for 
councils assets (buildings 
and land) 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
As illustrated in the above management response 3(a) the creation of SLA’s 
for all assets needs to be implemented.  This can only be completed following 
the work to define the Corporate landlord model ‘line’ in order to have a clear 
understanding of the roles of responsibility for the asset for both the central 
resourced function and the team responsible for managing the asset. 
 
Management response: Property project management team leader 

 
 
Workstream aligned to the 
structure review and gap 
analysis in the Corporate 
Landlord Model – design 
phase.  Likely to be 
completed by April 2022. 
 

 

Obj3: Safety controls and routines Risk Rating: Medium  

Risk Score: [4]  5. Landlord/Tenant compliance 

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
For council properties that are leased and/or 
shared (where the councils act in a landlord 
capacity) compliance letters have been 
evidenced as sent on occasion to tenants to 
obtain assurance that required statutory 
testing and checks are being conducted, (as 
per the individual lease agreement).  
 
Internal audit was unable to validate that this 
process was enforced for all leased/shared 
properties, as records of letters being sent 
are not retained centrally on the Concerto 
system.  
 
Risk(s)  
Landlord/tenant compliance checks are not 
maintained increasing the risk of harm, 

Establish a procedure to 
ensure that compliance 
assurance letters are issued to 
appropriate tenants that hold 
responsibilities relating to 
legislative compliance (as per 
individual lease agreements) 
and retain response evidence 
on Concerto as best practice.   

Strategic property manager 
 
 

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



enforcement action, fines, and reputational 
damage. 
If sufficient checks are not performed, there 
is a risk that non-operating and faulty 
systems, and items of poor physical 
condition will not be identified, which may 
result in costly repairs on termination of the 
lease and or tenants vacating the property. 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
Further work is required to define which leases fall into the category whereby 
the councils need to monitor tenant compliance and Concerto records need to 
be updated to hold these details. However, for multi-let properties with shared 
compliance, monitoring is well in hand.  
 
Management response: Strategic property manager / Property surveying 
team leader 

 
 
April 2022 
 

 

Obj3: Safety controls and routines Risk Rating: Medium  

Risk Score: [4]  6. Landlord inspections 

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Routine landlord inspections have not been 
taking place due to the surveying team 
operating with a reduced capacity from June 
to November 2020, and the impact of Covid-
19, resulting in a backlog of inspections. The 
team has now recruited further team 
members and is now in a position to 
reinstate a regular inspection routine. 
 
Risk(s)  

If landlord/tenant inspections are not 
maintained there is a risk that properties may 
fall into a poor physical condition, which may 
result in costly repairs on termination of the 
lease and or tenants vacating the property. 

 

Reinstate routine landlord 
property inspections to ensure 
council property assets are 
maintained to both legislative 
standard and individual lease 
agreements, with records 
retained on Concerto. 
 

Strategic property manager 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
A rolling programme of inspections is being drawn up, with investment 
properties being prioritised in order to identify tenant breaches.  
 
Management response: Strategic property manager / Property surveying 
team leader 

 
 
April 2022 

 

Obj5: Compliance performance reporting  Risk Rating: Low  

Risk Score: [2]  7. Monitoring activities and reports 

Findings Recommended 
Action(s) 

Action Owner(s) 

Findings 

A centralised report that details compliance 
performance by individual property and/or 

Consider implementing a 
centralised Compliance 
Performance Report to 

Property Asset Manager 
(currently vacant) to lead 
with support from Property Page 93

Agenda Item 8



service area is not currently in place or 
circulated. If such a report was implemented, 
this may assist raising awareness of 
compliance standards across council 
properties and services and ensure greater 
visibility and adherence to legislative 
requirements. 

 
Risk(s)  

If there is no monitoring of compliance 
performance, there is a risk that required 
checks, testing and service maintenance 
may be missed, resulting in faulty and non-
operating systems and a risk to life. 

There is a risk to potential enforcement 
action and fines where regulatory checks 
and testing are not completed in line with 
legislative requirements. 

 

distribute to responsible 
officers and/or service teams 
that displays the status of 
compliance performance for 
individual properties and/or 
service areas, to raise 
awareness of scheduled works, 
due dates and outstanding 
tasks required to be completed. 
 

Asset Management and 
Technical Services IT 
Solution project team 
 
 

Management Response Implementation Due 
Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
The existing CAFM system does currently provide an overview for compliance 
performance through a dashboard, however, due to the existing system design 
(created for Vinci processes and procedures) this is not currently set to meet 
the councils requirements.  As part of the upgrade project to Concerto it will be 
explored to consider how the dashboard and its reporting function will provide 
the functionality the councils require to manage its compliance for all 
properties.  The Concerto upgrade project to be completed by June 2022.  This 
will be addressed following the Go Live date. 
 
Management response: Property project management team leader 

 
 
To be implemented with 
the Go Live date of 
Concerto – Estimated date 
is June 2022 
 

 
Obj6: Inspections, Monitoring and Stock Condition Surveys Risk Rating: Med  

Risk Score: [5]  8. Property inspection schedule – (All assets) 

Findings Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 
Per our review of the Inspections Trackers at 
the time of review (August 2021), the 
following is noted: 

SODC  

 Of the 311 SODC property assets listed, 
inspections had been recorded as 
completed for 110 (35%); 

 198 (64%) SODC property asset 
inspections remain outstanding at the 
time of review; 

 Three (1%) properties are recorded as 
N/A. 

VWHDC 

 Of the 346 VWHDC properties assets 
listed, inspections had been recorded as 
completed for 83 (24%); 

 257 (74%) VWHDC property asset 
inspections remain outstanding at the 
time of review; 

 Six (2%) properties are recorded as N/A. 

 
Risk(s)  

If property asset inspections are not 
completed there is a risk that defects and 

a) The property inspection 
schedule to be reviewed to 
ensure there is adequate 
resource to conduct property 
asset inspections in a 
reasonable timeframe.    
 
 
 
 

b) Where the responsibility of 
property inspections fall to 
service teams, this should be 
clearly communicated with the 
relevant team with an 
appropriate timing schedule.  

 

Property Asset Manager 
(currently vacant) to 
lead with support from 
service managers and 
team leaders 
responsible for councils 
assets (buildings and 
land) 
 
 
As above 

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



maintenance issues that may cause a risk of 
harm may not be identified and actioned. 

Without an independent review of 
compliance, there is a risk that records may 
be surreptitiously completed for compliance 
purposes only and/or falsified. 

 

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
(a) There is currently a two-year programme for health and safety inspections 

scheduled against all council property assets, due for completion in July 2023.  
A five-year rag rated schedule is currently being considered ongoing and to be 
presented and agreed by services managers responsible for properties and 
the Head of Development and Corporate Landlord.  However, a discussion 
with health and safety is required as the new Health & safety policy states 
yearly.  

 
Once agreed this will be uploaded to the upgrade Concerto version and 
provide a schedule for officers to manage and execute. 

 
(b) There is currently only one compliance officer within the organisation and as 

part of both the SLAs and officers who manage and or maintain land assets it 
will need to identify who is the responsible officers for completing these 
inspections.  The responsible officers, if not already, will require training to 
ensure that they are competent to complete these inspections and ensure that 
they manage appropriately.  These will need to be added to job descriptions 
(roles and responsibilities). 

 
Management response: Property project management team leader 

 
 
Discussion required 
between property 
service managers and 
H&S advisor to review 
new H&S policy. 
Meeting set for January 
2022, aiming for mid-
February 2022 
completion.  
 
 
Workstream aligned to 
Corporate Landlord 
Model – design and 
Implementation phase 
once approved.  Likely 
to start in April 2022. 
 

 
Obj6: Inspections, Monitoring and Stock Condition Surveys Risk Rating: Med  

Risk Score: [5]  9. Stock condition surveys – (Buildings) 

Findings Recommended Action(s) Action Owner(s) 

Findings 

Stock condition surveys were not evidenced 
as being regularly completed for sampled 
council properties and records were not 
consistently available on the Concerto CAFM 
system.  

For the 20 (10 SODC and 10 VWHDC) 
properties reviewed within the sample, stock 
condition reports/surveys were not 
evidenced on the Concerto system as 
regularly completed. 

 

Risk(s)  

If surveys are not completed to assess the 
condition of properties, there is a risk that 
defects and maintenance issues that may 
cause a risk of harm may not be identified 
and actioned. 

 

A regular programme of building 
stock condition surveys to be in 
place to ensure that council 
assets are suitably managed and 
maintained. 

Property Asset Manager 
(currently vacant)  
 

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date 

Recommendation is Agreed 
 
There has historically not been an internal building surveyor resource for the 
councils, and these services have been procured on an ad hoc basis.  Due to the 
inconsistent approach the overview of the councils assets is inadequate.  Since 
mid-2020 the councils have appointed agency staff to try and bring this 
programme back up to date. 

 
 
Programme to be 
agreed following the 
appointment the new 
Property asset manager 
 Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 
This will need to be agreed as a rolling programme in order to feed into the 
reporting in the overall performance of our assets to understand the short, 
medium, and long term for running costs of our assets.  This will feed into the 
council’s budget setting, project works, and reporting cycles. 
  
Management response: Property project management team leader 

 

 

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 25 January 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

Internal audit management report 

quarter three 2021/22 

  

Recommendation(s) 
 

(a) That members note the content of the report. 
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is: 

 to report on management issues within internal audit; 

 to summarise the progress against the 2021/22 audit plan up to 17 
January 2022; and 

 to summarise the priorities for quarter four 2021/22. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 07766 780835, email 
victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 

meeting their strategic objectives. 
 
Background  
 
4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), effective from 1 April 2017, 

state that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, 
which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource 
requirements to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee approved the 2021/22 annual internal audit plan 
on 30 March 2021.  

 
5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 

performance relative to the plan.   
 
Management issues 
 
6. The internal audit manager returned from maternity leave on 22 November 

2021, consequently the contract with the interim internal audit manager, 
Richard Green ended on 26 November 2021.  
 

Progress against the 2021/22 audit plan 
 

7. Progress against the approved audit plan for 2021/22 has been calculated for 
the quarter and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.   

 
8. Performance figures to date are as follows: 
 

 

Target YTD 

Actuals by Quarter 

Q1 
21/22 

Q2 
21/22 

Q3 
21/22 

Q4 
21/22 

Chargeable 
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable) 

76% 55% 54% 58% 56% - 

Non-Chargeable  
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 

7% 21% 20.5% 22% 20% - 

Planned Lost 
(i.e. leave) 

14.5% 19% 21.5% 12% 22% - 

Unplanned Lost 
(i.e. study, sickness) 

2.5% 5% 4% 8% 2% - 

 
9. As at 17 January 2022 the status of audit work against the 2021/22 audit plan is 

as follows: 
 
Planned  
Strategic, operational and financial assurance and consultancy work known and 
approved by the joint audit and governance committee.   
 
 

 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



 

2021/22 Planned 

Not 
Performed 
(Removed) Deferred 

To 
commence 

Q4 In progress 

Completed 
or  

Draft Out 

Total 34 7 6 8 5 8 

Joint 32 5 6 8 5 8 

SODC 1 1 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 1 1 0 0 0 0 

 
Based on the internal audit manager’s assessment of the remaining audits (in 
progress and to commence in Q4), available audit hours to 31 March 2022, and 
suitability of audits at this time, the following updates have been made to the 
annual audit plan: 
 
Audits to remove 
 

Audit Area Audit Type Comments 

Payroll Key Financial Payroll not audited in 21/22, due to the previous audit 
being reported in July 2021. However, a follow up of 
the previous audit recommendations will be performed 
in Q4 and the next payroll audit will be scheduled for 
Q1 of 22/23. Payroll is replaced by Learning and 
Development. 

Pro-Active Anti-
Fraud Review  

Key Financial Review of fraud risks considered in every audit now – 
new scoping template to support this. Separate audit 
not required. 

Receipt & 
Collection of 
Income 

Operational Replaced by a Cash Office audit, which is already 
completed. 

Didcot 
Community 
Facilities  

Consultancy 

Work is either underway or under consideration in 
these areas, so no value to be gained at this stage 
from a consultancy review. 

Cornerstone  Consultancy 

The Beacon Consultancy 

Corporate 
Landlord  

Consultancy 

 
Audits to defer 
 

Audit Area Audit Type Comments 

Estates & 
Facilities 
Management 

Operational This area is moving under Corporate Landlord model, 
which is a work in progress. No added value from an 
internal audit in 21/22 

IT Operations Operational Significant work on IT strategy currently in progress, 
defer audit to a later date, once finalised. 

Planning 
Applications 

Operational Review of the development management process 
currently being commissioned. No added value from 
an internal audit.  

Planning 
Enforcement 

Operational Recent Council paper considered planning 
enforcement, therefore audit deferred. 

Procurement  Operational New procurement strategy in place – audit in 22/23 to 
review progress.  

Whistleblowing 
& Fraud 

Operational Audit not required, no areas of concern or high risk. 

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 9



 
Audits to commence in Q4 
 

Audit Area Audit Type Comments 

Capital 
Management & 
Accounting 

Key Financial Annual review of the capital financial strategy and 
asset management plan, capital contracts and 
budget monitoring, and the completeness and 
accuracy of the asset register. 

Housing Benefits & 
Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme  

Key Financial Annual review of housing benefits and CTRS 
payments, benefit assessments and subsidy 
claims, and benefit overpayments. 

Follow Up of 
Payroll 20/21 
Recommendations 

Key Financial Payroll not audited in 21/22, due to the previous 
audit being reported in July 2021. However, a 
follow up of the previous audit recommendations 
will be performed in Q4. 

Brown Bins Operational Audit initially started in June 2021 and will 
recommence in Q4; however, the audit scope will 
be revisited to address current risks.  

Disposal of Assets 
& Property 

Operational Disposal’s strategy newly implemented (Sep-21). 
Limited review of policy contents and any disposals 
since adoption of new policy. 

Information 
Governance (incl. 
SAR, GDPR, FOI) 

Operational No specific areas of concern and last audited in 
17/18. 

Learning & 
Development  

Operational Replaces Payroll 21/22 audit. 

S106/CIL  Operational Review of income collection. 

 
 
Ad-hoc 
Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations). 

 

 

2021/22 Requested Complete Draft 
In 

progress 
To 

commence 

Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0 

Joint 0 0 0 0 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Follow up  
Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review. 

 

 
2021/22 Requested Complete Draft 

In 
progress 

To 
commence 

Follow up 0 5 0 0 1 

Joint 0 4 0 0 1 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 1 0 0 0 
Page 100

Agenda Item 9



Priorities for 2021/22 quarter four (January – March 2022) 
 
10. The priorities for quarter four are to: 

  

 Continue the planned audit work for 2021/22, in line with the audit plan; 

 Prepare the annual audit plan for 2022/23; 
 
11. The schedule for remaining 2021/22 planned audit work can be reviewed in 

appendix 2.  
 
Financial implications 
 
12. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
 
Legal implications 
 
13. None. 
 
Risk implications 
 
14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

 
 

 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED AUDITS 2021/2022

Audit Area

As at 17 January 2022

Capital Management & Accounting (16)

SODC 7.5 0.0

VWHDC 7.5 0.0

Council Tax (20)

SODC 10.0 4.5

VWHDC 10.0 4.5

Creditor Payments (20)

SODC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

General Ledger (19)

SODC 5.0 2.5

VWHDC 5.0 2.0

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20)

SODC 10.0 0.5

VWHDC 10.0 0.5

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22)

SODC 7.5 5.0

VWHDC 7.5 5.0

Payroll (22)

SODC 15.0 1.0

VWHDC 15.0 0.5

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Sundry Debtors (19)

SODC 10.0 13.0

VWHDC 10.0 13.0

Treasury Management (18)

SODC 10.0 3.5

VWHDC 10.0 3.5

Brown Bins (16)

SODC 7.5 2.0

VWHDC 7.5 2.0

Car Parking & Enforcement (12)

SODC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

VWHDC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

Cash Office (14)

SODC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

Contract Management (19)

SODC 10.0 15.0

VWHDC 10.0 14.5

Council Fees and Charges (16)

SODC 10.0 11.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

Covid-19 Grants (N/A)

SODC 10.0 0.5

VWHDC 10.0 0.5

Estates & Facitities Management (17)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Information Governance (incl. SAR, GDPR, FOI) (11)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

IT Operations (20)

SODC 10.0 8.5

VWHDC 10.0 8.5

Land Charges (11)

SODC 10.0 9.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 9.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Learning & Development (N/A)

SODC 10.0 9.0

VWHDC 10.0 9.0

Planning Appeals (11)

SODC 10.0 5.5

VWHDC 10.0 5.5

Planning Applications (11)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Planning Enforcement (15)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Procurement (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Property Management (17)

SODC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

Receipt & Collection of Income (15)

SODC 7.5 0.0

VWHDC 7.5 0.0

Section 106/CIL (15)

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Whistleblowing & Fraud (N/A)

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Cornerstone

SODC 7.0 0.0

Corporate Landlord Approach

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Didcot Community Facilities

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Disposal of Assets & Property

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

The Beacon

VWHDC 7.0 0.0

JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 34 579.0 272.5

Completed 6 Full

Draft Out 2 Substantial

In Progress 5 Satisfactory

To Commence 8 Limited

Deferred 6 Nil

Not Performed (Removed) 7

34 0

Deferred

Not Performed

Completed

Limited

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

To Commence Q4

Not Performed

Deferred

L
o

w

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

D
a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

To Commence Q4

Not Performed

Completed

To Commence Q4

0383840

This area is moving under Corporate Landlord model, which is a work in 

progress. No added value from an internal audit in 2021/22.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A review of Covid-19 business, discretionary and councillor grants was 

taken out of the 2020/21 Covid-19 response audit and is performed 

separately in 2021/22..

4044

10

0

0

82

2

0

Deferred

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Audit initially started in June 2021 and will recommence in Q4; however, 

the audit scope will be revisited to address current risks. 

In Progress

In Progress

Completed Cash office replaces the Receipt & Collection of Income audit.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Draft Out

APPENDIX 1

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e
d

H
ig

h

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

Status

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
s

Audit Opinion

To Commence Q4 Disposal’s strategy newly implemented (Sep-21). Limited review of policy 

contents and any disposals since adoption of new policy.

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value 

to be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value 

to be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Deferred Recent Council paper considered planning enforcement, therefore audit 

deferred.

Limited

To Commence Q4 Review of income collection.

Not Performed

Audit not required, no areas of concern or high risk.

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value 

to be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Replaced by a Cash Office audit, which is already completed.

Review of the development management process currently being 

commissioned. No added value from an internal audit. 

Draft Out

To Commence Q4 Replaces Payroll 21/22 audit.

Deferred Significant work on IT strategy currently in progress, defer audit to a later 

date, once finalised.

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

In Progress

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no  value 

to be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

PLANNED ASSURANCE AUDITS

PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS

In Progress

In Progress

Not Performed

Completed

Deferred New procurement strategy in place – audit in 22/23 to review progress. 

Payroll not audited in 21/22, due to the previous audit being reported in 

July 2021. However, a follow up of the previous audit recommendations 

will be performed in Q4 and the next payroll audit will be scheduled for Q1 

of 22/23. Payroll is replaced by Learning and Development.

Review of fraud risks considered in every audit now – new scoping 

template to support this. Separate audit not required.

No specific areas of concern and last audited in 17/18.

Page 102

Agenda Item 9



AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2021/22 (As at 17 January 2022)
Key:

Projected Start Date

In Progress

Draft Out

Completed

Not Performed/Revised Arrangements

PLANNED AUDITS

1 2 3 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4
Capital Management & Accounting (16)

Council Tax (20)

General Ledger (19)

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20)

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22)

Sundry Debtors (19)

Treasury Management (18)

Brown Bins (16)

Covid-19 Grants (N/A)

Information Governance (11)

Learning & Development (N/A)

Section 106/CIL (15)

Creditor Payments (20)

Car Parking & Enforcement (12)

Cash Office (14)

Council Fees and Charges (16)

Land Charges (11)

Property Management (17)

Contract Management (19)

Planning Appeals (11)

Payroll (22)

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19)

Estates & Facitities Management (17)

IT Operations (20)

Planning Applications (11)

Planning Enforcement (15)

Receipt & Collection of Income (15)

Whistleblowing & Fraud (N/A)

2021/22 JOINT CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Corporate Landlord Approach

Didcot Community Facilities

Disposal of Assets & Property

2021/22 SODC CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Cornerstone

2021/22 VWHDC CONSULTANCY AUDITS

The Beacon

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

2021/22 JOINT ASSURANCE AUDITS

APPENDIX 2

MarchJanuary February

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 9



Report to: 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

 

 

Report of Head of Finance 

 

Author: Simon Hewings 

Telephone: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Telephone: 01189 722565 

E-mail:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee    25 January 2022 
To: Cabinet                                                       3 February 2022 
To: Council                                                       17 February 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

Future provision of external audit 

services 

Recommendations 

1) That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 
recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 
 

2) That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 
 

a) Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

 
b) Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 
of the 2023/24 accounts. 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for 
the accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24 and seeks authority for the Head 
of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments on behalf of the 
Council in accordance with the recommendation from Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 104

Agenda Item 10

mailto:simon
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk


Strategic objectives  

2. Effective financial management, including the effective external audit of the 
council’s accounts, helps underpin the council’s ability to deliver services and meet 
the council’s strategic objectives. 

Background 

3. The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including 
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts.  The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’ 
national auditor appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

 
4. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 

audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies need to decide their 
external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have the options to arrange their 
own procurement, or they can join the national collective scheme administered by 
PSAA. 

5. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national arrangements, then full 
Council is required under the local audit regulations to make this decision so that 
the council can opt-in by 11 March 2022. 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

6. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  
The Council has three options: 

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in 

the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 

designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  The body 

currently designated for this role is PSAA. 

The Appointed Auditor 

7. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each 
financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The 
appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors 
and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and 
statutory recommendations. 

8. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the 
procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 
qualified and independent. 

9. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the 
report below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners. 

10. Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider 
powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course 
of the next audit contract. 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



11. Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services 
they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by 
third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly 

12. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which 
would require the council to: 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. 
The auditor panel would need to be set up by the council itself, and the 
members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members 
as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 
appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 
their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not have 
a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the council’s external audit.  

 

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 
 
13. Alternatively, the Act enables the council to join with other authorities to establish a 

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact 
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under 
the Act and the council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the 
appetite for such an arrangement. 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

14. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under 
the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 
PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, 
covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the 
work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from 
the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit services. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs are around 4 per cent of the 
scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme members. 

15. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of 
the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 
formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with 
other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria 
are satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its 
detailed procurement strategy; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and 
managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 
scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the 
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect 
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and Page 106

Agenda Item 10



 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these 
have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing 
opinions 

16. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded 
in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few 
changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long 
period. 98 per cent of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme and 
attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts took 
effect from 1 April 2018. 

17. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to 
questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four 
independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s 
review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; the 
Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald Brydon’s 
review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now 
under consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant 
reforms will follow. A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and 
arrangements for system leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further 
change will follow as other recommendations are implemented. 

18. The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 
measurable improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for 
audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations 
in every audit they undertake. By the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local 
audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in place to respond to a more 
focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in 
audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to 
gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, 
posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of 
the FRC’s drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. 
As a result, many more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years.  

19. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention 
challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing 
levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new 
or enhanced income streams to help fund services for local people. These 
challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further 
significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

20. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges 
have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing 
responses to tender invitations have been experienced during the past two years. 

The National Scheme Invitation and Procurement Process 

21. PSAA is now inviting the council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 
2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of 
opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint 
a suitable firm to be the council’s auditor. 

22. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA has pledged 
to: 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 
scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 
 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 
accordance with the published fee scale as amended following consultations 
with scheme members and other interested parties (pooling means that 
everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a 
competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective 
scheme); 

 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4 per cent of scheme costs, and as 
a not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 
2019 it returned a total £3.5 million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further 
£5.6 million was returned; 

 

 seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able 
to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their 
available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They 
will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic 
market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting 
information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 
which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be 
informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids. 

 
23. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 

(currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the financial 
statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards 
regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of whether 
an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses to make its 
own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they shape the work 
auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

24. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other 
relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement 
exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national procurement 
exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence issues. Local firms 
cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the same audit scope and 
requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory 
responsibilities. 

Not Opting in to the National Scheme 

25. If the council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 
auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to 
be set up by the council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 
majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for 
this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected 
members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which 
audit firm to award a contract for the council’s external audit. 

26. Alternatively, the council could join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 
panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 
appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such 
a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under the Act and the 
council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for 
such an arrangement. 

Page 108

Agenda Item 10



27. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, 
and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to 
result in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and 
independence requirements through a local appointment process. The council 
would still be unable to influence the scope of the audit and the regulatory regime 
inhibits the council’s ability to affect quality.  The council and its auditor panel would 
need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 

28. The national procurement provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 
limited administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would 
be acting with other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that 
a national procurement provides. 

29. The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor 
appointment scheme. 

The Process to Opt in to the National Scheme 

30. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that 
a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting full Council.  

31. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 
specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

32. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 
expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on 
the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 
deadline of 31 December 2022. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

33. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

34. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the council’s overarching financial position. For South, the position 
reflected in the council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2021 showed that the council is due to receive £4.3 million less 
in revenue funding than it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from 
reserves including unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

 
35. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 

remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap 
could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the 
need to eliminate this funding gap in future years. 

 
36. There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the current 

contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit 
work. There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in the local audit 
market. 

37. Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as 
realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering 
into a large scale collective procurement arrangement. 

38. If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to 
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement 
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource may 
be required for audit fees from 2023/24. Page 109

Agenda Item 10



Legal implications 

39. Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant council 
to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 
December in the preceding year.  

40. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the council must 
consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant council is a 
local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local 
auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the council 
under those arrangements. 

41. Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The council 
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the council to 
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 
council.  

42. Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to 
an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has been 
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this 
gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become the 
appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the 
appointing person. 

Conclusion 

43. The report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will 
produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the council than a 
procurement undertaken locally because: 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 
authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

 if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the council will need 
to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent 
members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of 
an audit contract; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered 
auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local 
procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of auditor 
resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a 
continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term. 

44. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 
arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at 
full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 
2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the council needs to return 
completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

Page 110

Agenda Item 10



Report to: 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

Cabinet 

Council 

 

 

Report of Head of Finance 

 

Author: Simon Hewings 

Telephone: 01235 422499 

E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

Cabinet member responsible:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee    25 January 2022 
To: Cabinet                                                       4 February 2022 
To: Council                                                       16 February 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

Future provision of external audit 

services 

Recommendations 

1) That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 
recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 
 

2) That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 
 

a) Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government 
and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

 
b) Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 
of the 2023/24 accounts. 

 

 

Purpose of report 

1. This report sets out proposals for appointing the external auditor to the Council for 
the accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24 and seeks authority for the Head 
of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor appointments on behalf of the 
Council in accordance with the recommendation from Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 111

Agenda Item 10

mailto:simon
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic objectives  

2. Effective financial management, including the effective external audit of the 
council’s accounts, helps underpin the council’s ability to deliver services and meet 
the council’s strategic objectives. 

Background 

3. The current auditor appointment arrangements cover the period up to and including 
the audit of the 2022/23 accounts.  The Council opted into the ‘appointing person’ 
national auditor appointment arrangements established by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23. 

 
4. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for the next appointing period, covering 

audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. All local government bodies need to decide their 
external audit arrangements from 2023/24. They have the options to arrange their 
own procurement, or they can join the national collective scheme administered by 
PSAA. 

5. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national arrangements, then full 
Council is required under the local audit regulations to make this decision so that 
the council can opt-in by 11 March 2022. 

Procurement of External Audit for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 

6. Under the Local Government Audit & Accountability Act 2014 (“the Act”), the 
Council is required to appoint an auditor to audit its accounts for each financial year.  
The Council has three options: 

 To appoint its own auditor, which requires it to follow the procedure set out in 

the Act.  

 To act jointly with other authorities to procure an auditor following the 

procedures in the Act.  

 To opt into the national auditor appointment scheme administered by a body 

designated by the Secretary of State as the ‘appointing person’.  The body 

currently designated for this role is PSAA. 

The Appointed Auditor 

7. The auditor appointed at the end of the procurement process will undertake the 
statutory audit of accounts and Best Value assessment of the council in each 
financial year, in accordance with all relevant codes of practice and guidance.  The 
appointed auditor is also responsible for investigating questions raised by electors 
and has powers and responsibilities in relation to Public Interest Reports and 
statutory recommendations. 

8. The auditor must act independently of the Council and the main purpose of the 
procurement legislation is to ensure that the appointed auditor is sufficiently 
qualified and independent. 

9. The auditor must be registered to undertake local audits by the Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC) employ authorised Key Audit Partners to oversee the work. As the 
report below sets out there is a currently a shortage of registered firms and Key 
Audit Partners. 

10. Auditors are regulated by the FRC, which will be replaced by a new body with wider 
powers, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA) during the course 
of the next audit contract. 

Page 112

Agenda Item 10



11. Councils therefore have very limited influence over the nature of the audit services 
they are procuring, the nature and quality of which are determined or overseen by 
third parties. 

Appointment by the Council itself or jointly 

12. The Council may elect to appoint its own external auditor under the Act, which 
would require the council to: 

 Establish an independent auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. 
The auditor panel would need to be set up by the council itself, and the 
members of the panel must be wholly or a majority of independent members 
as defined by the Act. Independent members for this purpose are independent 
appointees, excluding current and former elected members (or officers) and 
their close families and friends. This means that elected members will not have 
a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which audit firm to award a 
contract for the council’s external audit.  

 

 Manage the contract for its duration, overseen by the Auditor Panel. 
 
13. Alternatively, the Act enables the council to join with other authorities to establish a 

joint auditor panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of 
independent appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact 
constitution of such a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under 
the Act and the council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the 
appetite for such an arrangement. 

The national auditor appointment scheme 

14. PSAA is specified as the ‘appointing person’ for principal local government under 
the provisions of the Act and the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. 
PSAA let five-year audit services contracts in 2017 for the first appointing period, 
covering audits of the accounts from 2018/19 to 2022/23. It is now undertaking the 
work needed to invite eligible bodies to opt in for the next appointing period, from 
the 2023/24 audit onwards, and to complete a procurement for audit services. 
PSAA is a not-for-profit organisation whose costs are around 4 per cent of the 
scheme with any surplus distributed back to scheme members. 

15. In summary the national opt-in scheme provides the following: 

 the appointment of a suitably qualified audit firm to conduct audits for each of 
the five financial years commencing 1 April 2023; 

 appointing the same auditor to other opted-in bodies that are involved in 
formal collaboration or joint working initiatives to the extent this is possible with 
other constraints; 

 managing the procurement process to ensure both quality and price criteria 
are satisfied. PSAA has sought views from the sector to help inform its 
detailed procurement strategy; 

 ensuring suitable independence of the auditors from the bodies they audit and 
managing any potential conflicts as they arise during the appointment period; 

 minimising the scheme management costs and returning any surpluses to 
scheme members; 

 consulting with authorities on auditor appointments, giving the Council the 
opportunity to influence which auditor is appointed; 

 consulting with authorities on the scale of audit fees and ensuring these reflect 
scale, complexity, and audit risk; and Page 113

Agenda Item 10



 ongoing contract and performance management of the contracts once these 
have been let. 

Pressures in the current local audit market and delays in issuing 
opinions 

16. Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last awarded 
in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had been few 
changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been reducing over a long 
period. 98 per cent of those bodies eligible opted into the national scheme and 
attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The resulting audit contracts took 
effect from 1 April 2018. 

17. During 2018 a series of financial crises and failures in the private sector year led to 
questioning about the role of auditors and the focus and value of their work. Four 
independent reviews were commissioned by Government: Sir John Kingman’s 
review of the Financial Reporting Council (FRC), the audit regulator; the 
Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market; Sir Donald Brydon’s 
review of the quality and effectiveness of audit; and Sir Tony Redmond’s review of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. The recommendations are now 
under consideration by Government, with the clear implication that significant 
reforms will follow. A new audit regulator (ARGA) is to be established, and 
arrangements for system leadership in local audit are to be introduced. Further 
change will follow as other recommendations are implemented. 

18. The Kingman review has led to an urgent drive for the FRC to deliver rapid, 
measurable improvements in audit quality. This has created a major pressure for 
audit firms to ensure full compliance with regulatory requirements and expectations 
in every audit they undertake. By the time firms were conducting 2018/19 local 
audits during 2019, the measures they were putting in place to respond to a more 
focused regulator were clearly visible. To deliver the necessary improvements in 
audit quality, firms were requiring their audit teams to undertake additional work to 
gain deeper levels of assurance. However, additional work requires more time, 
posing a threat to the firms’ ability to complete all their audits by the target date for 
publication of audited accounts. Delayed opinions are not the only consequence of 
the FRC’s drive to improve audit quality. Additional audit work must also be paid for. 
As a result, many more fee variation claims have been needed than in prior years.  

19. This situation has been accentuated by growing auditor recruitment and retention 
challenges, the complexity of local government financial statements and increasing 
levels of technical challenges as bodies explore innovative ways of developing new 
or enhanced income streams to help fund services for local people. These 
challenges have increased in subsequent audit years, with Covid-19 creating further 
significant pressure for finance and audit teams.  

20. None of these problems is unique to local government audit. Similar challenges 
have played out in other sectors, where increased fees and disappointing 
responses to tender invitations have been experienced during the past two years. 

The National Scheme Invitation and Procurement Process 

21. PSAA is now inviting the council to opt in for the second appointing period, for 
2023/24 to 2027/28, along with all other eligible authorities. Based on the level of 
opt-ins it will enter into contracts with appropriately qualified audit firms and appoint 
a suitable firm to be the council’s auditor. 

22. The prices submitted by bidders through the procurement will be the key 
determinant of the value of audit fees paid by opted-in bodies. PSAA has pledged 
to: 

Page 114

Agenda Item 10



 seek to encourage realistic fee levels and to benefit from the economies of 
scale associated with procuring on behalf of a significant number of bodies; 
 

 continue to pool scheme costs and charge fees to opted-in bodies in 
accordance with the published fee scale as amended following consultations 
with scheme members and other interested parties (pooling means that 
everyone within the scheme will benefit from the prices secured via a 
competitive procurement process – a key tenet of the national collective 
scheme); 

 

 continue to minimise its own costs, around 4 per cent of scheme costs, and as 
a not-for-profit company will return any surplus funds to scheme members. In 
2019 it returned a total £3.5 million to relevant bodies and in 2021 a further 
£5.6 million was returned; 

 

 seek to encourage market sustainability in its procurement. Firms will be able 
to bid for a variety of differently sized contracts so that they can match their 
available resources and risk appetite to the contract for which they bid. They 
will be required to meet appropriate quality standards and to reflect realistic 
market prices in their tenders, informed by the scale fees and the supporting 
information provided about each audit. Where regulatory changes are in train 
which affect the amount of audit work suppliers must undertake, firms will be 
informed as to which developments should be priced into their bids. 

 
23. The scope of a local audit is fixed. It is determined by the Code of Audit Practice 

(currently published by the National Audit Office), the format of the financial 
statements (specified by CIPFA/LASAAC) and the application of auditing standards 
regulated by the FRC. These factors apply to all local audits irrespective of whether 
an eligible body decides to opt into PSAA’s national scheme or chooses to make its 
own separate arrangements. The requirements are mandatory; they shape the work 
auditors undertake and have a bearing on the actual fees required. 

24. There are currently nine audit providers eligible to audit local authorities and other 
relevant bodies under local audit legislation. This means that a local procurement 
exercise would seek tenders from the same firms as the national procurement 
exercise, subject to the need to manage any local independence issues. Local firms 
cannot be invited to bid. Local procurements must deliver the same audit scope and 
requirements as a national procurement, reflecting the auditor’s statutory 
responsibilities. 

Not Opting in to the National Scheme 

25. If the council did not opt in there would be a need to establish an independent 
auditor panel to make a stand-alone appointment. The auditor panel would need to 
be set up by the council itself, and the members of the panel must be wholly or a 
majority of independent members as defined by the Act. Independent members for 
this purpose are independent appointees, excluding current and former elected 
members (or officers) and their close families and friends. This means that elected 
members will not have a majority input to assessing bids and choosing to which 
audit firm to award a contract for the council’s external audit. 

26. Alternatively, the council could join with other authorities to establish a joint auditor 
panel. Again, this will need to be constituted of wholly or a majority of independent 
appointees. Further legal advice would be required on the exact constitution of such 
a panel having regard to the obligations of each council under the Act and the 
council would need to liaise with other local authorities to assess the appetite for 
such an arrangement. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 10



27. These would be more resource-intensive processes to implement for the council, 
and without the bulk buying power of the sector-led procurement would be likely to 
result in a more costly service. It would also be more difficult to manage quality and 
independence requirements through a local appointment process. The council 
would still be unable to influence the scope of the audit and the regulatory regime 
inhibits the council’s ability to affect quality.  The council and its auditor panel would 
need to maintain ongoing oversight of the contract. 

28. The national procurement provides the appointment of an independent auditor with 
limited administrative cost to the council. By joining the scheme, the council would 
be acting with other councils to optimise the opportunity to influence the market that 
a national procurement provides. 

29. The recommended approach is therefore to opt in to the national auditor 
appointment scheme. 

The Process to Opt in to the National Scheme 

30. Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 requires that 
a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting full Council.  

31. The Council then needs to respond formally to PSAA’s invitation in the form 
specified by PSAA by the close of the opt-in period (11 March 2022).  

32. PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 2022. It 
expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with authorities on 
the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments by the statutory 
deadline of 31 December 2022. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

33. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

34. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the 
knowledge of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position 
reflected in the council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full 
Council in February 2021 showed that the council is due to receive £2.6 million less 
in revenue funding than it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from 
reserves including unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

 
35. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 

remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the 
announcement of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term 
financial consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap 
could increase further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the 
need to eliminate this funding gap in future years. 

 
36. There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could increase when the current 

contracts end. It is clear that the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit 
work. There are also concerns about capacity and sustainability in the local audit 
market. 

37. Opting into a national scheme provides maximum opportunity to ensure fees are as 
realistic as possible, while ensuring the quality of audit is maintained, by entering 
into a large scale collective procurement arrangement. 

38. If the national scheme is not used some additional resource may be needed to 
establish an auditor panel and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement 
exercise is completed it is not possible to state what, if any, additional resource may 
be required for audit fees from 2023/24. Page 116

Agenda Item 10



Legal implications 

39. Section 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires a relevant council 
to appoint a local auditor to audit its accounts for a financial year not later than 31 
December in the preceding year.  

40. Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment including that the council must 
consult and take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the selection and 
appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 provides that where a relevant council is a 
local Council operating executive arrangements, the function of appointing a local 
auditor to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an executive of the council 
under those arrangements. 

41. Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a local auditor. The council 
must immediately inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the council to 
appoint the auditor named in the direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 
council.  

42. Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to make regulations in relation to 
an ‘appointing person’ specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has been 
exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this 
gives the Secretary of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to become the 
appointing person. In July 2016 the Secretary of State specified PSAA as the 
appointing person. 

Conclusion 

43. The report concludes that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA will 
produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the council than a 
procurement undertaken locally because: 

 collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 
authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements; 

 if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the council will need 
to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair and independent 
members to oversee a local auditor procurement and ongoing management of 
an audit contract; 

 it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, registered 
auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and a local 
procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of auditor 
resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

 supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there is a 
continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium and long term. 

44. If the council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 
arrangements, it is required under the local audit regulations to make the decision at 
full Council. The opt-in period starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 
2022. To opt into the national scheme from 2023/24, the council needs to return 
completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 10



 

JAGC Jan 2022  1 

 

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee  

 
  
Report of the Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Yvonne Cutler Greaves 

Telephone: 07917 088357 

E-mail: yvonne.cutlergreaves@southandvale.gov.uk 

South cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andrea Powell 

AGENDA ITEM or 
REPORT NO 

E-mail: andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk 

Telephone: 07882 584120 

Vale cabinet member responsible:  

Councillor Debby Hallett 

Telephone:  07545 241013 

 E-mail: debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 25 January 2022 

 

Corporate risk review 

Recommendation(s) 

(a) That the Committee undertakes a half yearly progress review of the corporate risk 
registers as outlined in the risk management strategy. 

 
Purpose of the review 

1. This is the half yearly progress review of the corporate risk registers for South 
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council. This 
review follows on from the joint audit and governance committee report in July 
2021. 

2. The contact officers are Yvonne Cutler Greaves, Assurance Team Leader and 
Allison Holliday Risk and Insurance Officer for South Oxfordshire District Council 
(SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VoWHDC).  

Strategic Objectives  

3. Openness and accountability in South Oxfordshire.  

Page 118

Agenda Item 12



 

JAGC Jan 2022  2 

 

4. Working in an open and inclusive way in the Vale of White Horse.      

Background 

5. The corporate risk registers attached have been compiled as outlined in the risk 
management framework and reviewed and updated with individual Heads of 
Service. Since last reporting in July 2021, we are now operating as Business as 
Usual, and all Covid 19 Risks have been reallocated to appropriate service risk 
registers.  

6. There are a total of 23 risks (37 last report) on the South Oxfordshire District 
Council corporate risk register and 25 risks (38 last report) on the Vale of White 
Horse District Council corporate risk register.  

7. The top eight risks for South Oxfordshire District Council are shown below: 

Risk ref  Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

49 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-ups 
are not fit for purpose.  

8/7 

64 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate 
security protection of the council’s external 
website 

8/6 

2 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate 
security protection of the Software as Service 
Non cloud applications 

8/6 

11 Failure to fulfil the Data Protection legislative 
requirements.  

8/6 

9 Failing to have an effective health and safety 
management system in place. 

8/6 

58 IT and data security compromised due to remote 
working and naïve user behaviour 

8/6 

23 Lack of informed and consistent decision making 
across the council 

7/5 

4 Failure to manage the security of all council 
owned assets including council offices 

7/5 

 

 

 

 

Page 119

Agenda Item 12



 

JAGC Jan 2022  3 

 

8. The top seven risks for Vale of White Horse District Council are shown below: 

Risk ref  Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

50 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-ups 
are not fit for purpose. 

8/7 

2 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate 
security protection of the Software as Service 
Non cloud applications 

8/6 

67 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate 
security protection of the council’s external 
website 

8/6 

11 Failure to fulfil the Data Protection legislative 
requirements. 

8/6 

9 Failing to have an effective health and safety 
management system in place. 

8/6 

62 IT and data security compromised due to remote 
working and naïve user behaviour 

8/6 

4 Failure to manage the security of all council 
owned assets including council offices 

7/5 

 

9. One risk has increased gross risk score. 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

4/4 Failure to manage the security of all council 
owned assets including council offices 

7/5 

 

10. Twelve risks have reduced their risk score in South Oxfordshire District Council 
and in Vale of White Horse District Council since last reported in July 2021: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk score 
Gross/Net 

49/50 Third party contractors BCP’s and files back-
ups are not fit for purpose. 

8/7 

2/2 IT Cybersecurity breach due inadequate 
security protection 

8/6 

Page 120

Agenda Item 12



 

JAGC Jan 2022  4 

 

41/41 Major incident in the district - failure to 
adequately respond to a major incident 
affecting our residents 

6/3 

7/7 Poor staff morale, and wellbeing as a result of 
long period of working from home, 

5/3 

8/8 Failure to attract and recruit staff with the 
necessary skills 

5/3 

24/24 Failure to maintain a consistent standard of 
customer service 

5/3 

21/20 Changes in legislation and government policy, 
may impact the operational delivery 

5/3 

15/15 Failure of third-party contracts to deliver 
acceptable levels of statutory service 

5/3 

42/47 Failure to engage and communicate with our 
residents regarding key decisions 

5/3 

19/18 Failure to capitalise on and influence national 
initiatives that benefit the districts 

4/3 

18/17 Failure to realise future funding for Garden 
Communities 

4/3 

14/14 Failure to maximise opportunities to realise 
areas of revenue growth 

4/3 

 

11. There are two new risks for South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White 
Horse District Council: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

63/66 Failure to deliver on Joint Local Planning 
Policy resulting in penalties 

5/3 

64/67 IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate 
security protection of the council’s external 
website 

8/6 

 

 

 

 

Page 121

Agenda Item 12



 

JAGC Jan 2022  5 

 

12. Three risks have been merged into one risk Vale of White Horse District council.  

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description Risk 
score 
Gross/Net 

60/64 (merged 
risks 60/51/13) 

Failure to eliminate or significantly reduce 
revenue budget funding gap 

5/3 

13. Two risks have been successfully mitigated and completed in South Oxfordshire 
District Council and one risk have been successfully mitigated in Vale of White 
Horse District council 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description 

60/63 Failure to procure insurance on time 

61(merged with 

51/13) South 
only 

Failure to eliminate or significantly reduce revenue budget 
funding gap 

 

14. Nine risks in South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District 
council have been returned to the appropriate service area risk registers for 
review: 

Risk ref 
South/Vale 

Description 

59/60 Lack of clarity around R&R’s for property maintenance 

38/37 Failure to deliver a major election in the district 

12/12 Poor and inconsistent programme and project 
management 

32/28 Failure to secure the redevelopment of key council owned 
sites 

34/33 Failure to provide suitable office accommodation 

51/52 Failure to anticipate the impact of the requirements of 
recovery roadmap on our districts 

45/44 Brexit may impact economic viability of the districts 

22/21 Changes in political landscape across districts/county and 
nationally 

Page 122

Agenda Item 12



 

JAGC Jan 2022  6 

 

6/6 Failure to manage flexible working in response to external 
factors 

 

Financial Implications 

15. There are financial implications attached to managing the risks outlined in the 
corporate risk registers, and risk owners are responsible for ensuring costs of 
mitigation are proportionate to the risk exposure. 

 Legal Implications 

16.  None.  

  Risks 

17. Risk identification is an integral part of this progress review. 

 Other Implications 

18. None 

Attached: 

 South Corporate Risk Register Jan 2022 
 Vale Corporate Risk Register Jan 2022 

Page 123

Agenda Item 12



SOUTH Corp Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 FINAL 

SODC Corporate Strategic Themes
Sa All themes
Sb Protect and restore our natural world
Sc Openness and Accountability
Sd Action on Climate emergency 
Se Improved economic and community well-being
Sf Homes and Infrastructure that meet local needs
Sg Investment that rebuilds our financial Viability

Risk 
No/Ref

Corporate 
Strategic 
Themes

Risk category Risk description / consequences Gross risk 
rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action owner Net risk 
rating

Tolerable 
Y/N

Further mitigation actions if required Review by 
when

49

Sa Operational Third party  contractors Business Continuity Plans (BCP) and 
file back ups are not fit for purpose and may result in poor 
customer service and loss of council reputation if there  
a) is  failure of IT infrastructure.
b) Disaster Recovery  Incident

8

Mark Stone      
Adrianna 
Partridge 
Suzanne 
Malcom

There is a review of the IT Business continuity Plan (BCP)across 5CP see further 
mitigation. Review council  Business Recovery Plans (BRP's)  IT arrangements .Local 
Government Association ( LGA) cyber audit results have been received and Action plan 
is being written.
Review all Third Party  BCP's to ensure that they are fit for purpose. Capita have 30 
days of back up  at any one time. There is no cold store backup of council data.

All Service 
Managers

7 Y

Capita remote back up is not fit for purpose, the planned 
separation Office 365 from 5CP and move IT service to Azure 
(cloud) Proposal due Dec 2021 to mitigate this has been delayed 
until Spring 2022 due to increased cost to undertake this work, 
hence this net risk rating has not been mitigated down.
Review procurement procedures to include Third Party BCPs .
Develop training on contract management  and monitoring to 
ensure contractors to ensure the council manage performance 
effectively.
Maintain Spreadsheet of Third Party Market performance Share 
price to monitor potential issues with contractor 
viability/performance. Continue to monitor the situation.

Jan-22

64

Sa Technology 
security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security protection of 
the councils external website may lead to the council systems and 
data being compromised and result in council financial and 
reputation loss.

8

Adrianna 
Partridge

CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security 
software, firewalls and patches. The 5CP Information security group regularly meets to 
discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection 
officer in post. A senior IT manager has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  
Cyber security (CISSM/P)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and 
Insurance, Business continuity and the Data protection Officer are working through the 
data security Internal Audit recommendations ;have instigated Cyber and Data Security 
awareness campaigns to improve user awareness whilst working from home.
The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. The 
cyber audit was restricted by CAPITA who gave access to only 10% of Accounts. 
ACTION PLAN has been agreed and will be worked through with Cyber and data 
security working group and senior IT manager.

 Multi factor Authentication for Office 365 to be rolled out Dec 2021 once user testing at 
Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are resolved.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Looking to introduce 2 factor authentication for Website 
controllers to log in to avoid third parties access to the back 
office.

Jan-22

2

Sa                                                                        Technology 
security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of the Software as Service Non cloud applications 
(Zellis/Unit 4 etc) may lead to the council systems and data being 
compromised and result in council financial and reputation loss.

8

Adrianna 
Partridge

CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security 
software, firewalls and patches. The 5CP Information security group regularly meets to 
discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection 
officer in post. A senior IT manager has been trained and now holds a  certificate in  
Cyber security (CISSM/P)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and 
Insurance, Business continuity and the Data protection Officer are working through the 
data security Internal Audit recommendations and have instigated Cyber and Data 
Security awareness campaigns to improve user awareness whilst working from home.
The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. The 
cyber audit was restricted by CAPITA who gave access to only 10% of Accounts. 
ACTION PLAN has been agreed and will be worked through with Cyber and data 
security working group and senior IT manager.

Multi factor Authentication for Office 365  to be rolled out Dec 2021 (or early 2022) once 
user testing at Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are resolved.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Metacompliance Training Modules have been purchased and will 
be rolled out to all staff and councillors on LEAH. Review of Cllr 
awareness underway with 30 min briefings and regular In Focus 
updates to be agreed .                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Request membership to SEGWARP (South East Government 
Warning, Advisory and Reporting Point )underway.                                                                                                                                                                                                             
Capita will be undertaking their own audit in Jan 2022,await 
results and actions from this.                                                                                                                                     
Looking to implement single sign in of council networks using 
S/V credentials which will provide an extra level of complexity. 
This is dependent upon the 5CP tenancy split in 2022.             

Jan-22

11

Sb                                                                        Procedural/         
regulatory

Failure to fulfil the  Data Protection legislative requirements 
may result in fines, insurance claims and reputational damage if 
data is breached or a challenge is made

8

 Adrianna 
Partridge (DPO)

Information Governance and Data Protection role provides dedicated support to all 
teams as well as work to develop/review the corporate framework and all relevant 
policies.  Close liaison with Legal on data sharing agreements and review of contract 
clauses.  Additional Information Governance Officer is a permanent post . Updates to 
Record of Processing Activities (ROPA) during 20/21 to be embedded as a regular 
review process.  Data Protection Impact Assessments ( DPIAs) considered for all new 
processes and Data Protection Team/Officer advice sought on all new projects. Data 
protection training for all staff on LEAH.  Internal Audit of Data Protection  satisfactory 
assurance. Keep up to date with guidance from the information Commissioner and other 
bodies in relation to data protection and information rights.

Sally 
Truman/Sandy 
Bayley

6 Y

Constant monitoring of legislative tests. Continue work to ensure 
that all Data Protection policies are in place and up to date, 
including ongoing review of the ROPA. Developing a bespoke 
data breach procedure for all staff.  Ensure FOI/EIR requests are 
correctly managed to ensure compliance with DPA and minimise 
data breaches arising from incorrect handling. Write a new 
retention policy and records management policies, including 
retention and redacting, across the councils, review third party 
contractors and contracts to ensure requirements for processing 
personal data processing policies are accurately recorded. 

Jan-22

 South Oxfordshire District Council  Corporate Risk Register

SOUTH V2 Page 1 South

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 12



SOUTH Corp Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 FINAL 

9

Sc                                                                        Procedural -
Health and safety

Failing to have an effective health and safety management 
system in place and lack of resource to support, may result in:  a 
fatality, illness or injury to staff or anyone else affected by our 
business; damage to property; legal action by HSE; civil claims 
and increased costs.

8

Mark Stone Health & Safety advisor  in place however the Senior Health and Safety Advisor post is 
vacant (since June 2021). After the fundamental review of Health & Safety management 
system was undertaken and SMT and JAGC approved, the subsequent action plan  is 
being progressed. 
Items covered are:  the principle of a Corporate Landlord Model for properties, re-
established monthly reporting to SMT which includes agreed KPI's, regular joint 
reporting between Health & Safety, Risk & Insurance to enable risks to be proactively 
managed.   
New H&S policy written successfully undergone UNISON and SMT consultation and is 
now undergoing staff consultation.  
Home DSE checks  have been undertaken and are reviewed . A number of H&S training 
including Lone Workers courses are now on LEAH for all staff to access.

Adrianna 
Partridge

6 Y

Recruit to CIPFA Stage 2 findings for Property Asset 
management and Senior Health and Safety Advisor (vacant post 
since June 2021)
Promote approved Health and Safety policy via LEAH and Staff 
comms once staff consultation is complete .                                                                                           
Continue to develop all Health & Safety policies.                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Work with Property team to support the introduction of a 
Corporate landlord model across the councils.
Continue to encourage and support reporting of incidents.

Jan-22

58

Sa IT Security IT and data security compromised due to remote working 
and naive user behaviour, which may result in data breach and 
fines/loss of reputation

8

Adrianna 
Partridge

Regular monitoring and review at triage and SMT. Capita monitoring network for unusual 
activity and reporting to councils Action recommendations from security audit regard 
staff behaviours and awareness particularly during remote working. Update Jarvis pages 
. Cyber and data security awareness campaign launched  to raise awareness to all staff 
working remotely including password change to a longer more secure spec, data 
security and cyber awareness. Comms are agreed at monthly Cyber Group Meetings. 
Metacompliance Training Modules have been purchased and will be rolled out to all staff 
and councillors. Multi factor Authentication to be rolled out Dec 2021 once user testing at 
Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are resolved.

All Service 
Managers

6 Y

Continue to monitor and increase awareness throughout the 
year through Metacompliance and comms.  Agree future Cyber 
and Data Security and Comms Plan 2022-2023. Monitor Multi 
factor authentication with regard to security.

Jan-22

23

Sf  Planning Lack of informed and consistent decision making across the 
councils due to some members wishing to follow their democratic 
right to 'call in' planning decisions and go against the planning 
officer advice results in increase in no's of appeals and JRT's, 
increased costs, loss of infrastructure funding and loss of council 
reputation. 

7

Adrian Duffield Continue with Councillor training and support. The Heads of Service, section 151 and 
monitoring officers inform and advise relevant councillors on consequences and impact 
of planning decisions and legal, financial and policy implications of decisions. 

Update OCT 2021 - The 3yr Housing Land Supply expired 31/03/2021. From 01/04/21 
we have been required to have a 5yr Housing Land Supply across both South and Vale 
administrative areas.  South have received 2 appeal decisions that challenge South's 5 
year land supply (4.2yrs & 4.8yrs).  We are currently drafting an Action Plan covering 
5year land supply and are working towards having the Action Plan completed by end of 
Nov 2021. 
Planned targeted Councillor training . Planning Enforcement under review.  Key 
Performance indicators being met   
          

Adrian Duffield

5 Y

Maintain a consistent approach to briefing councillors on legal, 
financial and policy implications of making planning application 
decisions. Train Committee members and cabinet members on 
the planning process and implications and consequences of 
planning decisions in the local and national context. Provide 
support to parishes with regular updates and communications on 
reasons for planning decisions in the local and national context. 
Work with the consultation and customer engagement team to 
improve communication with local residents and parishes.   
OCT 2021 Continue to have an ongoing programme for training 
of councillors .     
If we find ourselves in a situation (South or Vale (or both)) where 
we do not have a 5 year land supply, we will conduct specialist 
training with Members on this specific area.      

Jan-22

4

Sa                                                                        Security - 
resources

Failure to manage the security of all council owned assets 
including council offices may result in an incident  or intruder 
entering the building putting our staff and visitors at risk or 
potential injury claims. 

7

Adrianna 
Partridge/Suzan
ne Malcolm/ 
James 
Carpenter

135 Reopened to staff as per the stage 2 of roadmap to recovery following protocols of 
booking and recording entry via secure pass doors.
Didcot Gateway Security: Outside consultants advising on security for new premises.  
Cornerstone and community centres have designated key holders and security checks 
as part daily operations.
Corporate Landlord Model: Provides clarity on roles and responsibilities.
Terror threat level increased to SEVERE 15.11.2021 gross risk increase to 7

Heads of Service

5 Y

 Monitor security plans across all council owned assets. Jan-22

41

Sa Security - 
resources

Major incident in the district - failure to adequately respond to a 
major incident affecting our residents may result in legal action 
(corporate manslaughter/environmental pollution) and loss of 
reputation. 

6

Adrianna 
Partridge

The council has an Emergency plan. Emergency planning officer (EPO)receives and 
reviews daily updates from the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) and Resilience Direct. 
Successfully implemented the Forth Bridge Plan arrangements on the death of HRH 
Prince Phillip April 2021. The Emergency Planning Officer (EPO) attends OCC meetings 
on a regular basis to ensure joint working and understanding of R&R (Roles and 
Responsibilities)in an emergency incident. (any major incident would be responded to by 
the relevant partner agencies, utilising Joint Emergency Services Interoperability 
Programme(JESIP) principles. The LRF would be stood up at the appropriate level to 
respond to the incident and call upon the necessary frameworks/plans. This could 
include a scientific technical advisory cell (STAC) in the event of environmental issues. 

Ben 
Coleman/Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford

2/3 Y

Keep up to date on latest developments in this area. Continuous 
revision of plans as and when appropriate. Training in 
Emergency planning incidents. 

Jan-22

18

Sg Programmes Failure to realise future funding for Garden Communities. 
(Didcot Garden Town and Berinsfield Garden Village)resulting in 
loss of reputation in the local communities.

5

Suzanne 
Malcolm

MASTER PLANNER recruited  to liaise with Key Stakeholders .(Detailed risk sits with 
Service area) Berinsfield Garden Village Team  negotiations with multiple stakeholders 
ongoing to agree terms of development to fulfil community aims (deprivation)/Garden 
Village principles.

James Carpenter

4 Y

Develop a stewardship strategy for Didcot Garden Town (DGT) 
to sustainably fund the model of operations.

Jan-22

SOUTH V2 Page 2 South

P
age 125

A
genda Item

 12



SOUTH Corp Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 FINAL 

26

Sa Property Lack of asset management expertise of council owned land 
and property portfolios results  in under investment in property 
across the councils, reducing the ability to maximise incomes  as 
well as lack of understanding as to where maintenance and 
insurance liabilities responsibilities lie (Council/Parishes etc).

5

Suzanne 
Malcolm

Validation of property records are now being undertaken by Council Officers, which will 
provide an up to date database of property ownership and inform an action plan for the 
management of the portfolio.  The facilities teams work alongside the property team to 
enable seamless property maintenance and statutory  Health & Safety (H&S) checks as 
required.  

Internal Audit have identified three areas of property: ownership/billing and H&S 
compliance. A full time officer has been seconded to the team to address Corporate 
Statutory Compliance.  A policy to allocate Cil/Sec 106 funding, ensuring all key service 
teams in the council are informed (insurance/property/parks/arts etc) and thus enable 
allocation of this funding, is now in place.

Corporate Landlord Model progress to GW2 approved by SMT . Interim HOS (J 
Carpenter) is leading on this . In addition, SMT has recently agreed for additional 
support within the Property team (fixed term contracts) to support current expertise in 
driving forward the implementation of key initiatives. 
The Staff realignment supports the roll out  of the Corporate landlord model, however 
there is a vacancy for key service manager in this area.

James Carpenter

4 Y

Recruitment of service manager to property asset team. 
Corporate landlord project initiation. This risk not mitigated yet 
until successful appointment of service manager.

Jan-22

63

Sf Sg Planning Failure to deliver on Joint local planning policy resulting in 
penalties and reputational risk as well as increased costs if we are 
required to undertake two separate policies for each council.

5

Suzanne 
Malcolm/  
Adrianna 
Partridge

Working with partners and developers to deliver the growth deal through the Joint 
Strategic Spatial Plan (JSSP)  Oxfordshire 2050. Growth Deal Programme Board meet 
monthly across the county (we have two members of our planning team on this reg 18  
plan for county) 

Harry Barrington- 
Mountford 
/Adrian Duffield

2/3 Y

Jan-22

7

Sa Resources 
personal security

Poor staff morale, and wellbeing as a result of long period of 
working from home, with increased workloads, taking sensitive 
phone calls from residents  in isolation in  home environment, 
may result in stress leading to increased absence and low staff 
retention rates and increased cost implication to fill the resource 
gap by recruiting contract staff.

5

Adrianna 
Partridge

Pulse survey results informed SMT on how to manage wellbeing  and  initiatives to 
support staff. Regular HR Staff drop in's on teams allow staff to raise concerns. 
Stage 2 of Councils roadmap is now in place allowing staff who wish to work at 135 to do 
so, following agreed procedures. All staff contracts have been updated to reflect 
business as usual  where blended/hybrid working is the norm. Team Leaders and Mental 
Health First Aiders are available to support by signposting to appropriate agencies.                                                                                                        
Regular work catch ups via virtual  meetings as well as wellbeing coffee meetings are 
actively encouraged.  Wellbeing action plan launched Jan 2021 to include Novel ideas 
book club; couch to 5K activity; meetings outside with team members supported by HR .
Christmas opening hours and 2 hours annualised hours leave announced and staff 
reminded to take as required.

David Fairall

2/3 Y

Monitor progress. Jan-22

8

Sa Resources Failure to attract and recruit staff with the necessary skills to 
roles across all service teams may result in shortage of resources 
to enable the council to deliver the corporate plan and fulfil their 
statutory duties.

5

Mark Stone Fully staffed Strategic HR Team now  in house. HR transformation is being 
implemented.   Continue to encourage and support existing staff to apply for internal 
vacancies.  Recruitment to roles continues virtually with procedures in place to  support  
onboarding. The economic environment post Covid has resulted in easier recruitment of 
staff and increased staff retention currently, however certain skilled areas are still difficult 
to recruit to. The council will continue to review successional planning to "grow our own" 
and provide internal on the job qualifications and skills training in roles where there are 
skills shortages (planning/building control/legal services) using secondments and 
apprenticeships. Team Realignment supports collaborative working model and reduces 
silo working providing the environment to support this.

Adrianna 
Partridge / David 
Fairall 

2/3 Y

Continue to monitor through HR transformation project. Jan-22

24

Sa Customer service Failure to maintain a consistent standard of customer service 
results in reputational damage and dissatisfied residents.

5

Adrianna 
Partridge

A Customer Service Team has been set up, which encompasses internal and external 
customer services. Regular monitoring of quality of in house customer service and 
switchboard services provided by Capita. Monitor complaints and follow up learning. 
Customer service transformation project Terms of Reference (TOR)has been agreed. 
Team realignment supports this project going forward. 

Sally Truman

2/3 Y

UPDATE OCT 2021. CRM (Customer Relationship 
Management) system under consideration for implementation in 
Jan 2022 as part of Customer Service Transformation Project. 
Monitor the progress of Customer Transformation Project.

Jan-22

21

Sa Procedural/         
regulatory

Changes in legislation and government policy,  may impact 
the operational delivery of the councils' corporate objectives. 

5

Adrianna 
Partridge

 Environment Bill enshrined in law with effect from 10 Nov 2021. Insight and Policy Team 
researching implications for future contracts. Maintain a watching brief for other 
legislation. A waste procurement expert is employed to support the waste contract 
procurement .
Building Safely Bill emerging with implications for building control relating to fire safety. 

Adrianna 
Partridge/  
Michelle 
Wells/Adrian 
Duffield/Liz 
Hayden

2/3 Y

 Review options to extend existing Biffa contract for Waste in 
light of potential changes in the Environment Bill until changes 
are understood.
Planning: Senior officer training for building safely bill planned for 
Jan 2022 - both South and Vale 

Jan-22

SOUTH V2 Page 3 South

P
age 126

A
genda Item

 12



SOUTH Corp Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 FINAL 

15

Sc Contract/Procedu
ral

Failure of third party contracts to deliver acceptable levels of 
statutory service, resulting in non compliance of  councils 
statutory obligations , reduction of service provision, inefficient 
operations, financial penalties and increased costs.( Merged  with 
risk 40 Failure to learn from contractor poor performance)

5

Mark Stone Methodology to report service breaches are in place, this provides evidence to use in 
contract re-negotiation. Contracts continue to be under review with focus on lessons 
learned. Governance structure in place and regular monitoring meetings held. Annual 
Performance Reports Scrutiny reviews projects as part of Corporate Delivery 
Framework.  Performance reporting process has been embedded to ensure openness 
and transparency. Provision of effective contract monitoring training for staff. Consider 
succession planning for hand over of contracts to ensure consistency and that focus is 
maintained. Council waste contract procurement to incorporate contract monitoring 
requirements.

Heads of Service

2/3 Y

Possible central contract monitoring group linked to SMT to 
review and report on contractual obligations and revisit 
contracts.  Management structure includes Head of Service and 
service management reporting on  contract KPI's  quarterly. 

Jan-22

42

Sa Corporate 
services

Failure to engage and communicate with our residents 
regarding key decisions in and out of council control may 
disenfranchise residents and result in loss of reputation. 

5

Adrianna 
Partridge

A communications plan is in place and is regularly reviewed for each corporate plan 
priority to ensure all key stakeholders and residents are kept informed, Heads of Service 
have comms buddies to enable forward planning of the strategy.  Update and streamline 
website. Continue to review survey uptake and assess means of reaching hard to reach 
groups.                                                                                         Communications and 
Engagement  Manager works proactively by meeting  with Leader and Cabinet members 
prior to and  following Cabinet briefings  to ensure messages and comms are accurately 
managed. Comms strategies are agreed before cabinet meetings.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
A digital comms strategy is being developed to ensure services accessible to all. 
Relaunch Town and Parish Forums.  Recruit Consultation officer to relaunch customer 
consultation through residents surveys. 

Shona Ware

2/3 Y

Jan-22

27

Se                                                                        Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding responsibilities may 
result in loss of reputation and civil claims if a safeguarding 
incident occurs in our districts and we have not followed the 
stipulated procedures and protocols of reporting.

5

Liz Hayden "Designated safeguarding officer (DSO) and deputies in place. Cases referred to DSO 
which do not meet the threshold can be referred to monthly Joint Tasking Meeting for 
multi-agency review.  

Oxfordshire County Council conducts a joint annual audit incorporating the standards 
from the safeguarding self-assessment against the Children Act 2004 (s11 audit) as well 
as the standards developed for Adult Services.  As part of this audit we submit an 
annual return which is subject to peer review. 

Process in place to protect potential victims of modern slavery (MS1).

Mandatory training appropriate to the level of contact, as a District Council with no social 
services and education responsibilities,  is being delivered monthly to new employees 
and all staff as part of the three year refresher training via Microsoft Teams.  Online 
training is to be introduced this year as part of the councils' induction programme.  The 
safeguarding policy has been reviewed and is published on our safeguarding page on 
Jarvis along with guidance on how to report any safeguarding concerns.  

Diane Foster

2/3 Y

S11 (Safeguarding Audit)  submitted by 3 December 2021 
deadline.  Peer review 17 February 2022. Report on findings 
from peer review S11 safeguarding audit return

Jan-22

19

Sc  Se Sf 
Sg                                                  

Programmes  Failure to capitalise on and influence national initiatives that 
benefit the districts. 

4

Mark Stone Continue to work in partnership with others (experts) to seek new areas of potential 
funding, building on our successful approach to raising money to support a number of 
major developments in the district such as securing a  housing grant deal for the district. 
There is an inconsistent approach to a feedback mechanism to share ideas  on funding 
sources or comment on National Policy.                                                                                                                                                    
Within the remit of the service is external funding, with the objective of "We will identify 
and attract external funding to benefit our communities and fulfil our objectives; working 
to maximise inward investment into Oxfordshire". This will be undertaken via active 
collaboration and engagement with all our partners ( Future Oxfordshire Partnership, 
Oxfordshire County Council  and Homes England) to ensure favourable future 
outcomes.                                                                                                                 Post 
COVID19 Review of all funding now available following lockdown. 
Andrew Down has been appointed a Director of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership. New 
Corporate plan supports/links and identifies national initiatives through Climate 
Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC)etc.

Andrew Down/ 
Harry Barrington-
Mountford

2/3 Y

Jan-22

14

Se Sg Finance Failure to maximise opportunities to realise areas of revenue 
growth may impact overall future council finances.  

4

Mark Stone  All Heads of Service to be vigilant in terms of new funding streams and opportunities 
and ensure that fees and charges relate to the budgeted cost of operating the 
service/scheme, are reasonably set and reviewed regularly as highlighted in the recent 
budget challenge. 

Simon Hewings

2/3 Y

Jan-22

25

Sa Corporate plan Failure to deliver on the corporate plan objectives results in 
reputational damage. 

2/3

Mark Stone Corporate Plan approved Nov 2020. Annual and quarterly delivery measures(qualitative 
and some quantative) have been agreed for approval . Q1 and Q2 performance 
reporting has been completed.Q3 underway.

Harry Barrington- 
Mountford & 
SMT

2/3 Y

Jan-22

62

Sf Sg Strategic 
Partnerships

Government actions in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc are outside 
the councils’ control and could have an impact on economic 
recovery and growth. 2/3

Andrew Down Continue to influence DLUHC initiatives including Arc Spatial Framework and formation 
of an ARC Growth Body. Authorities in the ARC have already agreed a set of 
environmental principles intended to shape future developments. Ensure members are 
aware and engaged .

Andrew Down/ 
Susan Harbour

2/3 Y

Jan-22

SOUTH V2 Page 4 South

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 12



VALE  Corporate Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 Final

VWHDC Corporate Strategic Themes
Va All themes
Vb Providing the homes people need
Vc Tackling Climate Emergency
Vd Building Healthy Communities
Ve Building Stable Finances
Vf Working in Partnership

Vg Working in an open and inclusive way

Risk No/Ref Corporate 
Strategic 
Theme

Risk category Risk description / consequences Gross risk 
rating

Risk owner Mitigation actions Action owner Net risk rating Tolerable 
Y/N

Further mitigation actions if required Review by when

50

Va Operational Third party  contractors Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) and files back ups are not fit for purpose 
and may result in poor customer service and loss of 
council reputation if there  
a) is  failure of IT infrastructure.
b) Disaster Recovery  Incident

8

Mark Stone      
Adrianna Partridge 
Suzanne Malcom

There is a review of the IT Business continuity Plan across (BCP) 5CP see further mitigation. Review council business resilience Plans 
(BRP's)  IT arrangements. Local Government Association (LGA) cyber audit results have been received and Action plan is being written.
Review all Third Party  BCP's to ensure that they are fit for purpose is underway. Capita have 30 days of back up  at any one time. There is no 
cold store backup of council data.

All Service 
Managers

7 Y

Capita remote back up is not fit for purpose, the planned separation 
Office 365 from 5CP and move IT service to Azure (cloud) Proposal 
due Dec 2021 to mitigate this has been delayed until Spring 2022 due 
to increased cost to undertake this work, hence this net risk rating has 
not been mitigated down.
Continue to monitor the situation.

Jan-22

2

Va                                                                        Technology 
security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of the Software as Service Non cloud 
applications (Zellis/Unit 4 etc) may lead to the council 
systems and data being compromised and result in 
council financial and reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security software, firewalls and patches. The 5CP Information 
security group regularly meets to discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A senior IT manager has been trained and 
now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISSM/P)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business continuity and the Data protection 
Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit recommendations ;have instigated Cyber and Data Security awareness campaigns 
to improve user awareness whilst working from home.
The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. The cyber audit was restricted by CAPITA who gave access to 
only 10% of Accounts. ACTION PLAN has been agreed and will be worked through with Cyber and data security working group and senior IT 
manager.

 Multi factor Authentication for Office 365 to be rolled out Dec 2021 once user testing at Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are 
resolved.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Metacompliance Training Modules have been purchased and will be 
rolled out to all staff and councillors on Leah.      Review of Cllr 
awareness underway with 30 min briefings and regular In Focus 
updates to be agreed .                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Request membership to SEGWARP underway. Capita will be 
undertaking their own audit in Jan 2022,await results and actions from 
this.                                                                                             Looking 
to implement single sign in of council networks using S/V credentials 
which will provide an extra level of complexity. This is dependent upon 
the 5CP tenancy split in 2022.                                                                                

Jan-22

67

Va Technology 
security

IT Cybersecurity breach due to inadequate security 
protection of the councils external website may lead to 
the council systems and data being compromised and 
result in council financial and reputation loss.

8

Adrianna Partridge CAPITA information security infrastructure provides continuous updates of security software, firewalls and patches. The 5CP Information 
security group regularly meets to discuss issues and mitigation actions.                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
The council has an experienced  information governance officer and data protection officer in post. A senior IT manager has been trained and 
now holds a  certificate in  Cyber security (CISSM/P)

Cyber and data security working group which includes members from  IT, Risk and Insurance, Business continuity and the Data protection 
Officer are working through the data security Internal Audit recommendations ;have instigated Cyber and Data Security awareness campaigns 
to improve user awareness whilst working from home.
The councils were chosen by the LGA to undergo an external LGA cyber audit. The cyber audit was restricted by CAPITA who gave access to 
only 10% of Accounts. ACTION PLAN has been agreed and will be worked through with Cyber and data security working group and senior IT 
manager.

 Multi factor Authentication for Office 365 to be rolled out Dec 2021 once user testing at Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are 
resolved.

Simon Turner

6 Y

Looking to introduce 2 factor authentication for Website controllers to 
log in to avoid third parties access to the back office.

Jan-22

11

Vg Procedural/         
regulatory

Failure to fulfil the  Data Protection legislative 
requirements may result in fines, insurance claims 
and reputational damage if data is breached or a 
challenge is made

8

 Adrianna Partridge 
(DPO)   

Information Governance and Data Protection role provides dedicated support to all teams as well as work to develop/review the corporate 
framework and all relevant policies.  Close liaison with Legal on data sharing agreements and review of contract clauses.  Additional 
Information Governance Officer is a permanent post from 28 June 2021 to support Information Governance and Data Protection Officer and 
FOI Officer with data protection and information rights. Updates to Record of Processing Activities (ROPA) during 20/21 to be embedded as a 
regular review process.  Data Protection Impact Assessments ( DPIAs) considered for all new processes and Data Protection Team/Officer 
advice sought on all new projects. Data protection training for all staff on LEAH.  Internal Audit of Data Protection  satisfactory assurance. 
Keep up to date with guidance from the information Commissioner and other bodies in relation to data protection and information rights.

Sally 
Truman/Sandy 
Bayley

6 Y

Constant monitoring of legislative tests. Work to ensure that all Data 
Protection policies are in place and up to date, including ongoing 
review of the ROPA. Developing a bespoke data breach procedure for 
all staff.  Ensure FOI/EIR requests are correctly managed to ensure 
compliance with DPA and minimise data breaches arising from 
incorrect handling. Write a new retention policy and records 
management policies, including retention and redacting, across the 
councils, review third party contractors and contracts to ensure 
requirements for processing personal data processing policies are 
accurately recorded. 

Jan-22

9

Vb                                                                        Procedural -
Health and safety

Failing to have an effective health and safety 
management system in place and lack of resource 
to support, may result in:  a fatality, illness or injury to 
staff or anyone else affected by our business; damage 
to property; legal action by HSE; civil claims and 
increased costs.

8

Mark Stone Health & Safety advisor  in place however the Senior Health and Safety Advisor post is vacant since June 2021. After the fundamental review 
of Health & Safety management system was undertaken and SMT and JAGC approved the subsequent action plan  is being progressed. 
Items covered are:  the principle of a Corporate Landlord Model for properties.; re-established monthly reporting to SMT which includes 
agreed KPI's.                                                                                      Regular joint reporting between Health & Safety, Risk & Insurance enable 
risks to be proactively managed.                                                                                                   New H&S policy written successfully undergone 
UNISON and SMT consultation and is now undergoing staff consultation.  
Home DSE checks  have been undertaken and are reviewed . A number of H&S training including Lone workers courses are now on Leah for 
all staff to access.

Adrianna 
Partridge

6 Y

Recruit to CIPFA Stage 2 findings for Property Asset management and 
Senior Health and Safety Advisor (vacant post since June 2021)
Promote approved Health and Safety policy via LEAH and Staff 
comms once staff consultation is complete .                                                                                           
Continue to develop all Health & Safety policies.                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Work with Property team to support the introduction of a Corporate 
landlord model across the councils.
Continue to encourage and support reporting of incidents.

Jan-22

 Corporate Risk Register - Vale of White Horse District Council

VALE V2 1 Vale

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 12



VALE  Corporate Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 Final

62

Va IT Security IT and data security compromised due to remote 
working and naive user behaviour, which may 
result in data breach and fines/loss of reputation

8

Adrianna Partridge Regular monitoring and review at triage and SMT. Capita monitoring network for unusual activity and reporting to councils Action 
recommendations from security audit regard staff behaviours and awareness particularly during remote working. Update Jarvis pages etc. 
Cyber and data security awareness campaign launched  to raise awareness to all staff working remotely including password change to a 
longer more secure spec, data security and cyber awareness. Comms are agreed at monthly Cyber Group Meetings. Metacompliance 
Training Modules have been purchased and will be rolled out to all staff and councillors.                                                                        Multi 
factor Authentication to be rolled out Dec 2021 once user testing at Mendip has been reviewed and any issues raised are resolved.

All Service 
Managers

6 Y

Continue to monitor and increase awareness throughout the year 
through Metacompliance and comms.  Agree future Cyber and Data 
Security and Comms Plan 2022-2023. Monitor Multi factor 
authentication regards security.

Jan-22

4

Ve Security - 
resources

Failure to manage the security of all council 
owned assets including council offices may result in 
an incident  or intruder entering the building putting 
our staff and visitors at risk or potential injury claims. 

7

Adrianna 
Partridge/Suzanne 
Malcolm/ James 
Carpenter

35 Reopened to staff as per the stage 2 of roadmap to recovery following protocols of booking and recording entry via secure pass doors.
Didcot Gateway Security: Outside consultants advising on security for new premises.  The Beacon and community centres have designated 
key holders and security checks as part daily operations.
Corporate Landlord Model: Provides clarity on roles and responsibilities.
Terror threat level increased to SEVERE 15.11.2021 Gross risk rating increased to 7 .

Heads of Service

5 Y

 Monitor security plans across all council owned assets. Jan-22

41

Va Security - 
resources

Major incident in the district. Failure to adequately 
respond to a major incident affecting our residents  
may result in legal action (corporate 
manslaughter/environmental pollution) and loss of 
reputation. 

6

Adrianna Partridge The council has an Emergency plan; Emergency planning officer who receives and reviews daily updates from the Local Resilience Forum 
and Resilience Direct. Successfully implemented the Forth Bridge Plan arrangements on the death of HRH Prince Phillip April 2021. The 
Emergency Planning Officer (EPO) attends OCC meetings on a regular basis to ensure joint working and understanding of R&R in an 
emergency incident. (any major incident would be responded to by the relevant partner agencies, utilising JESIP principles. The LRF would be 
stood up at the appropriate level to respond to the incident and call upon the necessary frameworks/plans. This could include a scientific 
technical advisory cell (STAC) in the event of environmental issues). 

Ben Coleman/Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford

2/3 Y

Keep up to date on latest developments in this area. Continuous 
revision of plans as and when appropriate. Training in Emergency 
planning incidents. 

Jan-22

25

Va Property Lack of asset management expertise of council 
owned land and property portfolios results  in 
under investment in property across the councils, 
reducing the ability to maximise incomes  as well as 
lack of understanding as to where maintenance and 
insurance liabilities responsibilities lie 
(Council/Parishes etc).

5

Suzanne Malcolm Validation of property records are now being undertaken by Council Officers, which will provide an up to date database of property ownership 
and inform an action plan for the management of the portfolio.  The facilities teams work alongside the property team to enable seamless 
property maintenance and statutory  Health & Safety (H&S) checks as required.  

Internal Audit have identified three areas of property: ownership/billing and H&S compliance. A full time officer has been seconded to the team 
to address Corporate Statutory Compliance.  A policy to allocate Cil/Sec 106 funding ensuring all key service teams in the council are informed 
(insurance/property/parks/arts etc) and thus enable allocation of this funding is now in place.

Corporate Landlord Model progress to GW2 approved by SMT . Interim HOS (J Carpenter) is leading on this . In addition, SMT has recently 
agreed for additional support within the Property team (fixed term contracts) to support current expertise in driving forward the implementation 
of key initiatives. 
The Staff realignment supports the roll out of the Corporate landlord model, however there is a vacancy for key service manager in this area.

Internal Audit have identified three areas of property: ownership/billing and H&S compliance. A full time officer has been seconded to the team 
to address Corporate Statutory Compliance.  A policy to allocate Cil/Sec 106 funding ensuring all key service teams in the council are informed 
(insurance/property/parks/arts etc) and thus enable allocation of this funding. is now in place supported by recent staff realignment.

James 
Carpenter

4 Y

Recruitment of service manager to property asset team. Corporate 
landlord project initiation. This risk not mitigated yet until successful 
appointment of service manager.

Jan-22

22

Vb   Vf                                                                    Democratic 
process

Lack of informed and consistent decision making 
across the councils due to some members wishing 
to follow their democratic right to 'call in' planning 
decisions and go against the planning officer advice 
results in increase appeals and JRT's  ,increased 
costs, loss of infrastructure funding and loss of council 
reputation.       

5

Adrian Duffield Continue with Councillor training and support . The Heads of Service, section 151 and monitoring officers inform and advise relevant 
councillors on consequences and impact of planning decisions and legal, financial and policy implications of decisions.  

Update OCT 2021 - The 3yr Housing Land Supply expired 31/03/2021, From 01/04/21 we have been required to have a 5yr Housing Land 
Supply across both South and Vale administrative areas.  Although Vale have not received any appeal decisions on 5 yr. housing land supply, 
there are a number of applications and pre-applications under determination that are challenging the housing land supply position in Vale. We 
are currently drafting an Action Plan covering 5year land supply and are working towards having the Action Plan completed by end of Nov 
2021. 

Planned targeted Councillor training . Planning Enforcement under review.  KEY Performance indicators being met   

Adrian Duffield

4 Y

Maintain a consistent approach to briefing councillors on legal, 
financial and policy implications of making planning application 
decisions. Train Committee members and cabinet members on the 
planning process and implications and consequences of planning 
decisions in the local and national context. Provide support to parishes 
with regular updates and communications on reasons for planning 
decisions in the local and national context. Work with the consultation 
and customer engagement team to improve communication with local 
residents and parishes.             

OCT 2021 Continue to have an ongoing programme for training of 
councillors .      

If we find ourselves in a situation (South or Vale (or both)) where we 
do not have a 5 year land supply, we will conduct specialist training 
with Members on this specific area.      

Jan-22

17

Ve                                                   Programmes Failure to realise future funding for Garden 
Communities. (Didcot Garden Town and Dalton 
Barracks ) resulting in loss of reputation.

5

Suzanne Malcolm MASTER PLANNER employed to liaise with Key Stakeholders .(Detailed risk sits with Service area.) Dalton barracks active negotiations with 
Defence infrastructure Organisation, as land owner to agree terms of development.

James 
carpenter

4 Y

Develop a stewardship strategy for DGT to sustainably fund the model 
of operations. Dalton barrack project team requires resource to 
support.

Jan-22

66

Vb Vf Planning Failure to deliver on Joint local planning policy 
resulting in penalties and reputational risk as well as 
increased costs if we are required to undertake two 
separate policies for each council.

5

Suzanne Malcolm/  
Adrianna Partridge

Working with partners and developers to deliver the growth deal through the Joint Strategic Spatial Plan (JSSP)  Oxfordshire 2050. Growth 
Deal Programme Board meet monthly across the county (we have two members of our planning team on this reg 18  plan for county) 

James 
Carpenter/Adria
n Duffield

2/3 Y

Jan-22

VALE V2 2 Vale

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 12



VALE  Corporate Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 Final

7

Va Resources 
personal security

Poor staff morale, and wellbeing as a result of long 
period of working from home, with increased 
workloads, taking sensitive phone calls from residents  
in isolation in  home environment, may result in stress 
leading to increased absence and low staff retention 
rates and increased cost implication to fill the resource 
gap by recruiting contract staff.

5

Adrianna Partridge Pulse survey results informed SMT on how to manage wellbeing  and  initiatives to support staff. Regular HR Staff drop in's on teams allow 
staff to raise concerns. 
Stage 2 of Councils roadmap is now in place allowing staff who wish to work at 135 to do so, following agreed procedures.                                                                                        
All staff contracts have been updated to reflect business as usual  where blended/hybrid working is the norm.                                                                                             

 Team leaders and Mental Health First Aiders are available to support by signposting to appropriate agencies.                                                                                                        
Regular work catch ups via virtual  meetings as well as wellbeing coffee meetings . are actively encouraged.                                                                                                               
.  Wellbeing action plan launched Jan 2021 to include Novel ideas book club; couch to 5K activity; meetings outside with team members 
supported by HR .
 Christmas opening hours and 2 hours annualised hours leave announced and staff reminded to take as required.

David Fairall

2/3 Y

Monitor progress. Jan-22

24

Va                                                                     Customer service Failure to maintain a consistent standard of 
customer service results in lack of customer service 
initiatives leading to reputational damage.

5

Adrianna Partridge A Customer Service Team has been set up, which encompasses internal and external customer services. Regular monitoring of quality of in 
house customer service and switchboard services provided by Capita. Monitoring of complaints and follow up learning. Customer service 
transformation project Terms of Reference (TOR)has been agreed. Team realignment supports this project going forward. 

Sally Truman

2/3 Y

UPDATE OCT 2021. CRM (Customer Relationship Management) 
system under consideration for implementation in Jan 2022 as part of 
Customer Service Transformation Project. Monitor the progress of 
Customer Transformation Project.

Jan-22

15

Va Contracts Failure of third party contracts to deliver 
acceptable levels of statutory service ,resulting in 
non compliance of  councils statutory obligations and 
,reduction of service provision, inefficient operations 
,financial penalties and increased costs.( Merge  with 
risk 40)

5

Mark Stone Methodology to report service breaches are in place, this provides evidence to use in contract re-negotiation. Contracts continue to be under 
review with focus on lessons learned. Governance structure in place and regular monitoring meetings held. Annual Performance Reports 
Scrutiny reviews projects as part of Corporate Delivery Framework.  Performance reporting process has been embedded to ensure openness 
and transparency. Provision of effective contract monitoring training for staff. Consider succession planning for hand over of contracts to 
ensure consistency and that focus is maintained. Council waste contract procurement to incorporate contract monitoring requirements.

Heads of 
Service

2/3 Y

Possible central contract monitoring group linked to SMT to review and 
report on contractual obligations and revisit contracts.  Management 
structure includes Head of Service and service management reporting 
on  contract KPI's  quarterly. 

Jan-22

8

Va Resources Failure to attract and recruit staff with the 
necessary skills to roles across all service teams 
may result in shortage of resources to enable the 
council to deliver the corporate plan and fulfil their 
statutory duties. 5

Mark Stone Fully staffed Strategic HR Team now  in house. HR transformation is being implemented.   Continue to encourage and support existing staff to 
apply for internal vacancies.  Recruitment to roles continues virtually with procedures in place to  support  onboarding. The economic 
environment post Covid has resulted in easier recruitment of staff and increased staff retention currently, however certain skilled areas are still 
difficult to recruit to as a result the council will continue to review successional planning to "grow our own" and provide internal on the job 
qualifications and skills training in roles where there are skills shortages (planning/building control/legal services) using secondments and 
apprenticeships. Team Realignment supports collaborative working model and reduces silo working providing the environment to support this.

Adrianna 
Partridge / 
David Fairall 

2/3 Y

Continue to monitor through HR transformation project. Jan-22

20

Va Procedural/         
regulatory

Changes in legislation and government policy, 
may impact the operational delivery of the councils' 
corporate objectives. 

5

Adrianna Partridge Environment Bill enshrined in law with effect from 10 Nov 2021. Insight and Policy Team researching implications for future contracts. Maintain 
a watching brief for other legislation. A waste procurement expert is employed to support the waste contract procurement .
Building Safely Bill emerging with implications for building control relating to fire safety. 

Adrianna 
Partridge/ 
Michelle 
Wells/Adrian 
Duffield/Liz 
Hayden 2/3 Y

Review options to extend existing Biffa contract for Waste in light of 
potential changes in the Environment Bill until changes are 
understood.
Planning: Senior officer training for building safely bill planned for Jan 
2022 - both South and Vale 

Jan-22

64

Ve Finance Failure to eliminate or significantly reduce the 
revenue budget funding gap due to loss of 
council revenues and increase in council 
expenditure in the medium  term may result in council 
deficit and inability to deliver key programmes and 
projects.

5

Mark Stone Monitor impact and assess revenue streams throughout 2021-2022  to inform how to build in budget contingency for 2021/22. Budget setting 
timetable to reflect the longer term .

 Finance team keep watching brief on expenditure via spreadsheet and undertake impact assessment.
S151 across Oxfordshire meet regularly to discuss collective impact.
Reports on arrangement of payments made to central Government.  BRPs are monitoring expenditure and reporting requirements. 
Government financial support throughout the pandemic limiting the council exposure to a deficit.
Budget for 2021 2022 revised to consider reduction in revenues thus reducing the risk of deficit in medium term
Budget 2022-2023 under consideration
Budget review under way
Net risk reduced to possible major impact amber. Red in Vale Monitor impact and assess revenue streams throughout 2021-2022  to inform 
how to build in budget contingency for 2021/22. Budget setting timetable to reflect the longer term impact.

Further mitigation  Base budgets  challenge Oct/ Nov 2021. Lobbying central govt to increase central govt support to bridge the  gap.

Simon Hewings

2/3 Y

Continuously monitor expenditure to better understand the short, 
medium and long-term financial exposure. 

Jan-22

47

Va Corporate 
services

Failure to engage and communicate with our 
residents regarding key decisions in and out of 
council control may disenfranchise residents and 
result in loss of reputation. 

5

Adrianna Partridge A communications plan is in place and is regularly reviewed for each corporate plan priority to ensure all key stakeholders and residents are 
kept informed ,Head of Service have comms buddies to enable forward planning of the strategy.  Update and streamline website. Continue to 
review survey uptake and assess means of reaching hard to reach groups.                                                                                         
Communications and Engagement  Manager works proactively by meeting  with Leader and Cabinet members prior to and  following Cabinet 
briefings  to ensure e messages. and comms are accurately managed. whilst Comms strategies are agreed before cabinet meetings.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
A digital comms strategy is being developed to ensure services accessible to all. Relaunch Town and Parish Forums.  Recruit Consultation 
officer to relaunch customer consultation through residents surveys. 

Shona Ware

2/3 Y

Jan-22

VALE V2 3 Vale

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 12



VALE  Corporate Risk Register JAGC Jan 2022 Final

27

Vd                                                   Safeguarding Failure to deliver council safeguarding 
responsibilities may result in loss of reputation if a 
safeguarding incident occurs in our districts and we 
have not followed the stipulated procedures and 
protocols of reporting.

5

Liz Hayden "Designated safeguarding officer (DSO) and deputies in place. Cases referred to DSO which do not meet the threshold can be referred to 
monthly Joint Tasking Meeting for multi-agency review.  

Oxfordshire County Council conducts a joint annual audit incorporating the standards from the safeguarding self-assessment against the 
Children Act 2004 (s11 audit) as well as the standards developed for Adult Services.  As part of this audit we submit an annual return which is 
subject to peer review. 

Process in place to protect potential victims of modern slavery (MS1).

Mandatory training appropriate to the level of contact as a District Council with no social services and education responsibilities,  is being 
delivered monthly to new employees and all staff as part of the three year refresher training via Microsoft Teams.  Online training is to be 
introduced this year as part of the councils' induction programme.  The safeguarding policy has been reviewed and is published on our 
safeguarding page on Jarvis along with guidance on how to report any safeguarding concerns.  

Diane Foster

2/3 Y

S11 (Safeguarding Audit)  submitted by 3 December 2021 deadline.  
Peer review 17 February 2022. Report on findings from peer review 
S11 safeguarding audit return

Jan-22

18

Va Programmes Failure to capitalise and influence national 
initiatives that benefit the districts.

4

Mark Stone Continue to work in partnership with others (experts) to seek new areas of potential funding, building on our successful approach to raising 
money to support a number of major developments in the district such as securing a  housing grant deal for the district. There is an 
inconsistent approach to a feedback mechanism to share ideas  on funding sources or comment on National Policy.                                                                                                                                                    
Within the remit of the service is external funding, with the objective of "We will identify and attract external funding to benefit our communities 
and fulfil our objectives; working to maximise inward investment into Oxfordshire". This will be undertaken via active collaboration and 
engagement with all our partners ( Future Oxfordshire Partnership, Oxfordshire County Council  and Homes England) to ensure favourable 
future outcomes.                                                                                                                 Post COVID19 Review of all funding now available 
following lockdown. 
Andrew Down has been appointed a Director of the Future Oxfordshire Partnership. New Corporate plan supports/links and identifies national 
initiatives through Climate Emergency Advisory Committee (CEAC)etc.

Andrew Down/ 
Harry Barrington-
Mountford

2/3 Y

Jan-22

14

Ve Finance Failure to maximise opportunities to realise areas 
of revenue growth may impact overall future council 
finances.  

4

Mark Stone SMT All Heads of Service to be vigilant in terms of new funding streams and opportunities and ensure that fees and charges relate to the budgeted 
cost of operating the service/scheme, are reasonably set and reviewed regularly as highlighted in the recent budget challenge. 

Simon Hewings

2/3 Y

Jan-22

23

Va Corporate plan Failure to deliver on the corporate plan objectives 
results in reputational damage. 

2/3

Mark Stone Corporate Plan approved Nov 2020. Annual and quarterly delivery measures(qualitative and some quantative) have been agreed for approval 
. Q3 reporting underway. Performance Management Framework is being developed in line with the corporate delivery framework to monitor 
progress with quarterly reporting. Team realignment has supported the delivery of corporate plan objectives and reporting of performance 
reporting.

Harry Barrington- 
Mountford & 
SMT

2/3 Y

Jan-22

65

Vf Strategic 
partnerships

Government actions in the Oxford-Cambridge Arc 
are outside the councils’ control and could have an 
impact on economic recovery and growth.

2/3

Andrew Down Continue to influence DLUHC initiatives including Arc Spatial Framework and formation of an ARC Growth Body. Authorities in the ARC have 
already agreed a set of environmental principles intended to shape future developments. Ensure members are aware and engaged .

Andrew 
Down/Susan 
Harbour

2/3 Y

Jan-22

46

Vf Planning/        
Finance

Abingdon reservoir plans result in a financial impact 
for the council to run and attend public enquiries and 
consultations in the district.  

2/3

Suzanne Malcolm Budgets have been agreed to fund public engagement in Spring 2020. However, this has been delayed and is subject to Thames Water Public 
Enquiry 2024 with a possible Commissioning in 2038 , hence public enquiry budget removed. Keep a watching brief.

Andrew Down 
/Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 2/3 Y

Thames Water continues to progress the reservoir proposal and we 
have formed an officer working group to coordinate related activities.

Jan-22

VALE V2 4 Vale

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 12



  

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee 
 

 
  
Report of: Head of Corporate Services 

Author: Sally Truman 

Contact: Sarah James 

Telephone:  01235 422600 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422600  

E-mail: sarah.james@southandvale.gov.uk  

 

South Cabinet member: Andrea Powell 

Tel: 07882 584120 

E-mail:  andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk  

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 25 January 2022 

Vale Cabinet member: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail:  debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 
 

Review of complaints received during 2020-21 

Recommendation 

That the committee reviews formal complaints received in 2020-21 and performance 
in responding to complaints against timescales set out in our Corporate Complaints 
Policy. 

 

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with a review of formal complaints 
we received during 2020-21 in line with the corporate complaints procedure. 

Strategic objectives  

2. This report sets out formal complaints received by the councils, it therefore underpins all of 
our Corporate Plan objectives; along with our ambitions to provide excellent customer 
service and transparency in decision-making.  By recording complaints, we can 
understand when things have gone wrong resulting in us failing to meet customer 
expectations, failure to provide a service or where we have not followed correct procedure. 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 132

Agenda Item 13

mailto:sarah.james@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.powell@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:debby.hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


  

 

3. Appendix One includes the number of Covid-19 related complaints received by stage, and 
service. 

4. Appendix Two includes charts demonstrating the number of formal complaints received 
and performance in providing the response within 15 working days.  

5. Appendix Three includes the official annual complaints reports received from the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman (Ombudsman). 

6. Appendix Four includes a copy of the complaints policy document which is available on 
the councils’ website complaints pages. 

The Formal Corporate Complaints Procedure 

7. Our corporate complaints policy and council-wide procedure for dealing with complaints 
ensures that: 

 members of the public know what to do if they have a complaint and understand how 
we will deal with it 

 staff are confident about what to do when they get a formal complaint 

 customers are treated fairly and equally 

 we can improve our services using customer feedback from complaints 
 
8. In the year 2020-21, we recorded two complaints which resulted in service review and 

improvement. Both these complaints were resolved at stage two of our complaints process 
and were not referred to the Ombudsman. One complaint was about the wording used in a 
condition attached to a planning application, which was upheld and addressed by training 
delivered to planning officers.  

9. As stipulated in the Ombudsman guidance on good practice: the purpose of a complaints 
system is to put right what has gone wrong, and to learn from it. Where a complainant has 
a justified grievance, there is a duty to put things right at the earliest opportunity. 
Depending on the seriousness and type of complaint, putting things right could involve a 
range of outcomes, from a simple written apology to a reimbursement of funds or a 
compensation payment. 

 
10. To help customers understand the complaints policy and procedure that we follow when 

we are handling complaints, a copy of the policy document is now published on the 
complaints page of our websites. This enables staff to refer to relevant points of the policy 
when corresponding with customers.  

11. Please refer to Appendix Four to read the policy which has been adapted for public use. 
The adaptations include the addition of ‘useful definitions’ for key words used throughout 
the policy document, and by staff when contacting customers. We have also added further 
detail on how submit a complaint or concern to us, encouraging customers to contact 
service team in the first instance to address the concerns raised through an informal 
resolution.  

Stage one 

12. Each service has nominated officers responsible for logging stage one formal complaints. 
The relevant service manager will investigate and respond to the complainant within 15 
working days.  

 

Page 133

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Stage two 

13. If the complainant is not satisfied with the stage one response, then they can ask for their 
complaint to be reviewed as a stage two within six weeks of the date of the stage one 
response. The complainant must explain why they are not satisfied with the response they 
received at stage one, and what outcome they would like to achieve in pursuing a stage 
two complaint. 

14. The stage two complaint will be allocated to the head of service for the relevant service 
area. However, if the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and 
Operations or Head of Corporate Services, considers it more appropriate, a complaint may 
be re-allocated to an alternative head of service or deputy chief executive.  The head of 
service or deputy chief executive will investigate the complaint and respond within 15 
working days of receipt. 

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
15. If the complainant remains dissatisfied with the stage two response, they have the right to 

ask the Ombudsman to investigate their complaint. The Ombudsman investigates 
complaints of alleged injustice concerning Local Authorities. 

Complaints reporting 

16. Last year’s complaints report included figures for financial years 2018-19 and 2019-20 due 
to pending work on the council’s new complaints database which has enabled us to 
simplify and improve our reporting process. 

17. Our report this year includes the numbers of complaints received and our performance 
against target for issuing a response for 2020-21, set out in Appendix Two. This includes 
a narrative of the identified themes of complaints, as well as changes in our services that 
were required as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

18. We have also encapsulated in this report, an interim overview of complaints received in 
the six-month period between April-September 2021, allowing councillors and staff the 
opportunity to reflect on our most recent performance and monitor themes before the year 
end. Please refer to section entitled ‘Interim Overview - Complaints received April-
September 2021’. 

19. Following the service realignment in September 2021, Development and Regeneration 
has been realigned to Development and Corporate Landlord. This year’s report and 
annual figure comparison is unaffected by this. 

20. The councils receive annual letters with reports from the Ombudsman, with a summary of 
their decisions. Extracts of these are available in Appendix Three and show a comparison 
of our performance against other district councils.  

South Oxfordshire District Council  
2020-21 we received 96 stage one complaints, a reduction of 24 on the previous year. The 
percentage number of complaints escalated to stage two increased by 7%. There was also 
a decrease in the number of complaints referred to the Ombudsman to the previous year. 
Please see point 18 which refers to their pause in casework. 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Vale received a slight increase of stage one complaints in 2020-21 compared to 2019-20, 
but less than previous years. The noticeable difference is an increase in complaints 
received by Development and Regeneration from zero in 2019-20 to seven in 2020-21, 
due to the grant applications dealt with by the Economic Development team in response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic, and concerns about our leisure centres. Stage two complaints 

Page 134

Agenda Item 13



  

 

also increased slightly on the previous year with an increase of 2%. Vale saw a decrease 
in the number of complaints referred to the Ombudsman. 

Covid-19 related complaints 

21. Licensing received complaints including those following the cancellation of face-to-face 
license renewal meetings because staff were required to work remotely. An online 
application process was put in place to allow applications and renewals to continue. 

22. In response to the pandemic, Government introduced a number of grants for businesses 
to provide both mandatory and discretionary to support those affected by the Covid-19 
restrictions. Our Finance team (alongside Capita) dealt with assessing the mandatory 
grants, whilst the Economic Development team assessed the discretionary grants.  Both 
teams received complaints from customers and businesses who were not eligible for the 
schemes.  

23. We also received complaints dealt with by the Active Communities team, as a result of the 
closure of leisure centres including concern about staff entering the premise during 
lockdown for maintenance or the offer to freeze gym memberships. 

24. Our Technical Services team who are responsible for the councils’ car parks, received 
complaints with concerns about the use of carparks during the pandemic or requests for 
refund or reduction on parking permits. 

25. Please refer to Appendix One for the figures. 

Ombudsman investigations 

26. The Ombudsman upholds complaints when they find fault in an authority’s actions, 
including where the authority accepted fault before their investigation. A focus on how 
often things go wrong, rather than simple volumes of complaints, provides a clearer 
indicator of performance. 

27. They recommend ways for authorities to put things right when faults have caused injustice. 
Recommendations try to put people back in the position they were in before the fault.  
Monitoring is carried out to ensure recommendations are complied with.  

28. The Ombudsman encourages the early resolution of complaints and credit authorities that 
have a positive and open approach to resolving complaints, and where satisfactory 
remedies have been provided.  

29. At the end of March 2020, the Ombudsman took the unprecedented step of temporarily 
stopping their casework and did not accept any new complaints, in the wider public 
interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on vital frontline services during the first 
wave of the Covid-19 pandemic. They restarted casework in late June 2020, after a three 
month pause. The councils continued to consider stage one and two complaints in this 
time. 

30. Of the 10 complaints received by the Ombudsman for Vale in 2020-21, one was 
investigated formally which was upheld, they found fault, but no injustice caused to the 
complainant.  The Ombudsman received 16 complaints for South, of which four were 
investigated and none upheld. This compares with two upheld complaints for Vale and one 
upheld for South in the previous year 2019-20.  

A summary of the upheld complaint is available in Appendix Three.  

 

Page 135

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Interim Overview - Complaints received April-September 2021 

31. The figures will be provided in next year’s annual report, but here we highlight the service 
areas with noticeable trends that will allow each service area to reflect and where required 
implement service improvements and help influence the second half of the year. 

32. The service areas to note for this six-month period are as follows: 

Housing and Environment  

The increase in complaints recorded for Housing and Environment are mainly as a result 
of the disruption to the garden waste service following the suspension. These complaints 
were actually responded to by corporate services, as they are responsible for the 
customer contact. 

Finance 

The increase in finance complaints is in the main due to the backlog of correspondence for 
council tax and benefits. This was as a result of the pandemic and the recommencement 
of recovery action. General themes here included a lack of, or delay in response to 
customer contact and objections to recovery.  

Financial Implications 

33. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

Legal Implications 

34. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

Other implications 

35. There are no other implications arising directly from this report. 

Risks 

36. It is important to have a robust and efficient complaints system in place to ensure that 
members of the public receive clear and fair responses to their queries and concerns; and 
to have oversight and review of the process.  This provides transparency for customers 
and manages reputational risk. 

Conclusion  

37. This report sets out a review of formal complaints received during 2018-19 and 2019-20. 
The Committee is asked to review complaints received, and response times. 

Background papers 

 None  

Page 136

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Appendix One 

Covid-19 Related Complaints 

1. The below chart demonstrates the number of complaints received by stage, that were 
Covid-19 related. 

 

2. The below chart shows the number of Covid-19 related complaints received by service 
team. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Appendix Two 

South Oxfordshire District Council 

     Number of formal complaints received and performance in providing 
the response within 15 working days 

1. The following charts show the number of complaints received at each stage of the 
process over the past three completed years. 

 

2. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2020-21 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process. 

 

Page 138

Agenda Item 13



  

 

3. The following charts show service area performance in providing the response 
within 15 working days in 2020-21.  

On the occasion circumstances do not allow us to meet our deadline, an extension 
of time will be agreed with the complainant, although they are recorded as outside 
target because they will have exceeded 15 working days. 

 

 

 

Please note you will see a variance in the total number of complaints received, 
compared with the numbers of complaints responded to in the given year. This is 
because a complaint received late March will be reported as received in one year, and 
responded to in the following.  

Page 139

Agenda Item 13



  

 

4. The following charts show the outcomes of Ombudsman complaints received in 
2019-20 and 2020-21. 

Page 140

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Appendix Two 

Vale of the White Horse District Council 

     Number of formal complaints received and performance in providing 
the response within 15 working days 

5. The following charts show the number of complaints received at each stage of the 
process over the past three completed years. 

 

6. The following charts show the number of complaints received in 2020-21 for each 
service area at each stage of the complaints process. 

 

Page 141

Agenda Item 13



  

 

7. The following charts show service area performance in providing the response 
within 15 working days in 2020-21. 

On the occasion circumstances do not allow us to meet our deadline, an extension 
of time will be agreed with the complainant, although they are recorded as outside 
target because they will have exceeded 15 working days. 

 

 

Please note you will see a variance in the total number of complaints received, 
compared with the numbers of complaints responded to in the given year. This is 
because a complaint received late March will be reported as received in one year, and 
responded to in the following. 

Page 142

Agenda Item 13



  

 

8. The following charts show the outcomes of Ombudsman complaints received in 
2020-21 compared with the previous year. 

 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Appendix Three 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Summary 2020-21 

1. The following chart is an extract from the Ombudsman’s annual report, and show 

the performance of Ombudsman complaints for South Oxfordshire District 

Council, compared with other District Councils. 

Upheld Complaints 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period. 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority 

The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period. 

 

 

2. The following charts are an extract from the Ombudsman’s annual report, and show 

the performance of Ombudsman complaints for Vale of the White Horse District 

Council, compared with other District Councils. 

Upheld Complaints 

 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

 

 

 

Page 144

Agenda Item 13



  

 

Satisfactory remedies provided by the authority 

 

 

3. Summary of the Vale Upheld complaints:  

The Ombudsman’s decision and report on this occasion was not made public. 

Summary: Mr X complained the Council failed to properly consider a planning application. We 

found there was some fault. However, we concluded the outcome of the planning application was 

unlikely to have been different, had that fault not occurred. 

Page 145

Agenda Item 13



 

1 
 

   
 
 

 

 

Complaints Policy and 

Procedure 

 

  

 
 
 Last updated: January 2022 

Page 146

Agenda Item 13



 

2 
 

CONTENTS              PAGE 

Policy statement  3 
 
The need for a corporate complaints policy  3 
 
Definition of a complaint  3 
 
Formal corporate complaints procedure   3  
 
Stage One – service manager  4 
 
Stage Two – head of service  5 
 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO)  5 
 
Making a formal corporate complaint  6 
 
Anonymous complaints  7 
 
Vexatious and unreasonable complainant behaviour  7 
    
Monitoring, analysing and reporting  7 
 
Confidentiality   7 
  
Appendix One – When the formal complaints procedure cannot be used   8   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Useful Definitions: 
 
Working days – days the council is open to the public (not Saturdays, Sundays, 
Bank holidays and any other closures) 
Relevant manager - the manager who oversees the team or service complained 
about 
Ward councillor – the district councillor who is responsible for your area. You can 
find your councillor(s) on our websites:  
www.southoxon.gov.uk/councillors  
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/who-
we-are/the-councillors/  
 

Page 147

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/councillors
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/who-we-are/the-councillors/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/about-the-council/who-we-are/the-councillors/


 

3 
 

Complaints Policy and Procedure 

POLICY STATEMENT 

1. The council is committed to putting people at the centre of everything we do. We 
aim to provide a high standard of service and recognise we do not always get it 
right first time. Customer feedback is important to us, and we want you to tell us 
when you think we have got something wrong, so we can endeavour to put it right 
and learn from it.  

 

THE NEED FOR A CORPORATE COMPLAINTS POLICY 

2. Having a council-wide procedure for dealing with complaints ensures that: 

• customers know what to do if they have a complaint and understand how 
we will deal with it 
 

• staff know what to do when they receive a complaint 
 

• customers are treated fairly and equally 
 

• we can improve our services by analysing complaints 
 
3. The complaints policy is intended for the use of customers, residents, businesses 

and visitors, or their chosen representatives. 
 

4. As stipulated in the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
guidance on good practice: the purpose of a complaints system is to put right 
what has gone wrong, and to learn from it. Where a complainant has a justified 
grievance, there is a duty to put things right at the earliest opportunity.  

 

DEFINITION OF A COMPLAINT 

5. Our definition of a complaint is an expression of dissatisfaction about a council 
service that requires a response.  A complaint can relate to the standard of, or 
service received, the way a decision has been made, actions or lack of actions by 
the council, its staff or its partners and contractors. 

 

FORMAL CORPORATE COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 

6. Minor service dissatisfaction or failures, for example a missed bin collection, are 
dealt with directly by the relevant service team. Some responses may come 
directly from our suppliers or partners. 

 
7. The service team will aim to achieve an informal resolution to address the 

concerns you have raised. If you are not sure which team to contact, please email 
enquiries@southoxon.gov.uk or enquiries@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.  

 

Page 148

Agenda Item 13

mailto:enquiries@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:enquiries@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

4 
 

8. Before accepting a formal complaint, the customer service team will look at 
whether you have already sought an informal resolution with the service team. 
Where appropriate, we will allow the service team the opportunity to address your 
concerns. 

 
9. If you do not feel the matter was satisfactorily resolved by way of informal 

resolution, then you can ask for it to be reviewed as a formal complaint.  
 

10. We will acknowledge your complaint and let you know if we can progress it under 
the formal corporate complaints procedure. Please refer to Appendix One to 
understand when our formal complaints procedure cannot be used. 

 
11. There are two stages to our formal complaints procedure, with a third 

independent stage: 
 

• Stage One: responded to by the relevant service manager 

• Stage Two: this is to review the stage one investigation and outcome, 
which will be carried out by the relevant head of service. It is not an 
opportunity to raise new issues or further points of representation. 

• Local Government Ombudsman: if you are dissatisfied with the outcome 
of our formal complaints procedure, you can refer your complaint to the 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 

12. We require you to provide all the information and evidence you have at the point 
of submitting a complaint. In the unavoidable circumstance that new information 
or evidence becomes available to you during investigation of your complaint, we 
would need to consider a revised deadline. 

 
13. When we acknowledge a complaint, we may seek clarity on the information you 

have provided before the stage one or stage two investigation can begin. 
 

14. If it is not possible for a response to be provided within the deadline set out in our 
acknowledgement, we will write to you before the deadline to let you know a 
revised date. 

 

15. On the occasion an individual officer has had previous involvement in a matter, or 
a complaint is about that member of staff, it may be allocated to an alternative 
service manager or head of service, at the discretion of the Chief Executive, 
Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and Operations or Head of Corporate 
Services. 

 

16. Complaints which involve multiple service areas, will be handled with a co-
ordinated approach and a response provided by the service area we consider 
most relevant. 

 

STAGE ONE – SERVICE MANAGER  

17. We will contact you within one working day to acknowledge your complaint, we 
will provide the: 

 

• complaint reference number, 

Page 149

Agenda Item 13



 

5 
 

• name and title of the service manager who will be responding, 

• date you can expect to receive your response, which is within 15 working 
days from our acknowledgement 

18. In a small number of circumstances, we will escalate your complaint straight to 
stage two. This includes a complaint about the procedure followed during a Code 
of Conduct complaint, but not for review of the Monitoring Officer’s decision. 

  
19. If new information or evidence is provided by you after you have received the 

stage one complaint response, we will consider whether this demands a new 
stage one complaint. 

 

STAGE TWO – HEAD OF SERVICE 

20. Following the outcome of the stage one complaint, you have a right to ask for 
your complaint to be reviewed under stage two. 

 
21. At stage two, the role of the head of service is to review the response you were 

provided at stage one, and whether we have satisfactorily addressed the points 
you raised in your stage one complaint. 

 

22. You must write to us within six weeks of the date of the stage one response to 
request your complaint is escalated to stage two, including the following: 

 

• what you feel has not been answered in your stage one response,  

• and what outcome you would like to achieve in pursuing a stage two 
complaint 

23. We will contact you within one working day to acknowledge your complaint, we 
will provide the: 

 

• name and title of the head of service who will be responding, 

• date you can expect to receive your response, which is within 15 working 
days from our acknowledgement 

24. If new information or evidence is provided by you after you have received the 
stage two complaint response, we will consider whether this demands a new 
stage one complaint. 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN (LGSCO) 
 

25. The LGSCO investigates complaints of alleged injustice concerning Local 
Authorities. Their service is free of charge. 

 
26. If you remain dissatisfied following the outcome of our formal complaints 

procedure, you can contact the LGSCO at www.lgo.org.uk or telephone 0300 061 
0614. The address of the LGSCO is as follows: 10th Floor, Millbank Tower, 
Millbank, London SW1P 4QP. 

 

Page 150

Agenda Item 13

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


 

6 
 

27. Before the LGSCO will accept your complaint, you must first complete stage one 
and two of our complaints procedure, as set out in this policy. 

 
28. The law does not allow the LGSCO to accept complaints made by an “authority 

constituted for the purposes of the public service”. This includes parish and town 
councils. 

 

HOW TO MAKE A FORMAL COMPLAINT 

29. Formal complaints can be submitted in a number of ways: 
 

• our online complaints form available on our website at: 
www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints or www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint, 

• by email to complaints@southandvale.gov.uk,  

• or by letter to 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Abingdon, OX14 4SB 

30. If you are unable to use our online complaints form, when writing to us please 
include the following: 
 

• Name, Address and Email address (if you have one) 

• Details of complaint: A summary of what has or has not happened 

• What do you feel has been the effect of the action or lack of action? 

• What do you think the council could do to put it right? And any outcomes 
you are looking to achieve 

• Have you been in contact with anyone in the council about this matter? If 
so, please advise with who and when 

• Evidence for example emails, letters or photographs 

31. With signed confirmation from you, a complaint can be submitted on your behalf 
by your chosen representative. 

 
32. Our customer service team are available on 01235 422600. If you are unable to 

put your complaint in writing, they will complete the online complaints form on 
your behalf, with you on the phone. Please note all telephone calls are recorded 
and saved for 6 months before they are deleted. 

 

33. If you have difficulty in putting forward your complaint because of speech, 
language or other problems, you will be offered assistance. 

 

34. If you visit our office in order to make a complaint, you will be asked to complete 
the online complaint form and if help is required with this, a customer service 
officer can assist you. You may be accompanied at any time by a friend or 
advocate. 

 

35. If a complaint is sent to an individual officer or councillor, you may then be asked 
to complete our online complaint form. Alternatively, the officer may forward your 

Page 151

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint
mailto:complaints@southandvale.gov.uk


 

7 
 

correspondence to the customer service team for it to be dealt with in line with the 
complaints policy and procedure. 

 

36. When a complaint is submitted by a group (more than one person), we will ask for 
a signed confirmation from all parties saying they are happy to be considered as a 
group. We will then agree with you how we will correspond with the group. 

 

ANONYMOUS COMPLAINTS 

37. Generally, we do not investigate anonymous complaints. Anonymous complaints 
will only be dealt with if they involve individual or public safety, corruption, waste 
or other impropriety and where there is sufficient information to allow an 
investigation to proceed. 

 

VEXATIOUS AND UNREASONABLE COMPLAINANT BEHAIVOUR 

38. In a minority of cases, complainants pursue matters in a way that can impede the 
investigation of their complaint or have significant resource issues for us. 

  
39. We have a separate policy for dealing with vexatious and unreasonable 

behaviour, which can be found at: www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints and 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint 

 

MONITORING, ANALYSIS AND REPORTING 

40. An annual complaints report is submitted to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

41. The identity of a complainant will only be revealed to those who need to consider 
it; their identity will not be made known to anyone else, nor will it be made public. 

  
42. Files that contain confidential information may be subject to data subject access 

requests under the Data Protection Act 2018. Consideration of what can be 
released will be decided by the Data Protection Officer, who will take into account 
the complainant’s own rights and expectation of confidentiality. 

 
43. Where there is an explicit request by you to do so and your consent has been 

given, your complaint and associated documentation/correspondence will be sent 
to your ward councillors. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 152

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint


 

8 
 

APPENDIX ONE - WHEN OUR FORMAL COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 
CANNOT BE USED 

1. For matters that have already exhausted our complaints procedure and/ or 
have been investigated by the Ombudsman. 
 

2. Complaints about parish or town councils should be sent directly to the 
relevant town or parish council using the contact information on their website. 
 

3. Benefits: 
If you disagree with the way we have calculated your benefit entitlement, you 
can ask us to send their appeal to the Tribunal Service for review by an 
independent tribunal.  To do this you should contact us within one calendar 
month of our decision by email to: 

sodc.benefits@secure.capita.co.uk or
 vowh.benefits@secure.capita.co.uk 

 
or by writing to: 

 
South Oxfordshire District Council    or Vale of White Horse District 
Council 
PO Box 870     PO Box 880   
Erith      Erith 
DA8 1UN     DA8 1UN 
Tel:  0345 302 2313    Tel:  0345 302 2315 

 

4. Licensing: 
To appeal against a decision regarding licensing (premises, personal or taxi 
licences) you must lodge that appeal with the appropriate court within 21 days 
of the date of our decision. The written decision notice will give details of the 
relevant rights of appeal. For taxi penalty points, the route of appeal is detailed 
within the letter issuing points.  
 

5. Planning Application and Enforcement Decisions:  
When a planning application is refused, an applicant has a legal right to 
appeal to the Planning Inspectorate.  

 
The formal complaints procedure can only be used to investigate the 
procedures followed in determining an application, and not the decision itself. 
We will not investigate complaints from objectors who are simply unhappy that 
we have granted planning permission for a particular development, as we only 
have powers to revoke such a decision in exceptional circumstances. 

 
Similarly, our corporate complaints procedure cannot be used if you are not 
happy with a planning enforcement triage or formal investigation decision. We 
can only accept a complaint if you think we have not followed due process, as 
set out in the council’s Planning Enforcement Statement. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 153

Agenda Item 13

mailto:sodc.benefits@secure.capita.co.uk
mailto:vowh.benefits@secure.capita.co.uk


 

9 
 

6. Excess charge notices (parking fines): 
If you want to dispute an excess charge notice (parking fine), you must do so 
in writing, preferably within the reduced payment period of the excess charge 
notice, either by email to carparks.southandvale.uk@sabagroup.com 
 
or by writing to: 
 
Car parks team 
Saba Park Services Ltd. 
For and on behalf of South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
Councils 
Milton Park 
Milton 
Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB 
 

7. Complaints about Elected Members:  
If the complaint is about the conduct of a district councillor, a member of one 
of the town or parish councils or a co-opted committee member, the complaint 
should be considered under the Code of Conduct complaints procedure by the 
Monitoring Officer. Please visit the Councillors’ code of conduct page on our 
website for further information: 
www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/local-democracy-
and-elections/council-meetings-and-decision-making/councillors/councillors-
code-of-conduct/ 
 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/local-
democracy-and-elections/councillors-committees-and-
meetings/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/ 
 

 

Page 154

Agenda Item 13

mailto:carparks.southandvale.uk@sabagroup.com
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/council-meetings-and-decision-making/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/council-meetings-and-decision-making/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/south-oxfordshire-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/council-meetings-and-decision-making/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/councillors-committees-and-meetings/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/councillors-committees-and-meetings/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/local-democracy-and-elections/councillors-committees-and-meetings/councillors/councillors-code-of-conduct/


 
 

Managing vexatious and unreasonable 

complainant behaviour policy 

Last Updated: January 2022 

INTRODUCTION 

1. We want to be able to deal with complainants in ways that are open, fair and 
proportionate. A clear policy on dealing with what is considered to be unreasonable 
behaviour helps staff to understand what is expected of them, what options for taking 
action are available, and who can authorise such action. 

 
2. Some customers may have justifiable complaints but may pursue them in 

unreasonable ways. Others may pursue complaints which appear to have no 
substance, or which have already been exhaustively investigated and determined; 
their contacts with the council may be amicable, but nevertheless will place heavy 
demands on staff time.  
 

3. Situations can sometimes escalate, and complainants’ behaviour may become 
abusive, threatening, offensive or otherwise unacceptable.  

 
 

AIM 

4. The aim of this policy is to:  

 

 Protect the wellbeing of our staff and the integrity of our processes 

 

 Outline the actions to be taken when people display vexatious and unreasonable 

complainant behaviour 

DEFINING UNREASONABLE COMPLAINANT BEHAVIOUR  

5. Our definition of unreasonable complainant behaviour is: Unreasonable and 

unreasonably persistent complainants are those who, because of the nature or 

frequency of their contacts with the council, hinder the councils’ consideration 

of their, or other people’s complaints, and who continue to occupy an 

unreasonable amount of staff time when it has been made clear that it is not 

possible to achieve the outcome they want.  

 
6. Below are examples of actions and behaviours that may be considered 

unreasonable:  
 

 Abusive, offensive, aggressive, threatening behaviour and/or language from 

complainants. 

 

Page 155

Agenda Item 13



 
 

 Submitting repeat complaints with minor additions/variations and insisting that 

these are ‘new’ complaints. 

 

 Refusing to accept the decision and repeatedly arguing points with no new 

evidence. 

 
 Persistence in presenting the details of the complaint in a confusing manner or 

refusing to provide evidence supporting their claims including diary sheets, 

despite offers of help. 

 

 Making excessive demands on the time and resources of staff. This will include 

lengthy and/or frequent phone calls, emails or letters to council staff.  

 
 Adopting a ‘scatter gun’ approach: pursuing parallel complaints on the same 

issue with more than one service area or authority. 

 

 Demanding meetings with staff when it is clear this will not achieve what the 

complainant is seeking to achieve or resolve the complaint any further. 

 
 Submitting falsified documentation. 

 

 Refusing to cooperate with the complaints process, for example refusing to 

accept that certain issues are not within the scope of the corporate complaints 

policy and procedure, or that the matter is not the district councils’ responsibility 

despite being directed to an external organisation including Oxfordshire County 

Council or the Police. 

 

 Making unjustified complaints about staff who are trying to deal with the issues, 

including demanding to deal with someone else. 

 
 Denying or changing statements that you made at the outset. 

 

ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COUNCILS TO MANAGE UNREASONABLE 
COMPLAINANTS  

7. If such behaviours are displayed towards a member of staff, we will warn the 
complainant that we may: 

 Terminate the phone call if the behaviour does not change. 
 

 Terminate the meeting if the behaviour does not change. 
 

 Decline to provide a further response to an email or letter. 
 

 Where behaviour is so extreme that it threatens the immediate safety and 

welfare of staff, the council will consider other options, for example reporting 

the matter to the police. 
 

8. If the inappropriate behaviour recurs, the relevant head of service will consider 

invoking this policy. In making this decision, they will review whether: 

 

Page 156

Agenda Item 13



 
 

 The complaint is being or has been investigated properly and thoroughly, in line 

with relevant policy and procedures including the councils’ formal corporate 

complaints procedure available at: www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints and 

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint  

 

 The decision reached is the logical, fair and reasonable. 

 

 Communications with the complainant have been adequate. 

 
9. Should the head of service decide to invoke this policy, they will write to the 

complainant advising: 
 

 Why a decision has been taken to invoke the policy. 

 

 What specific restriction(s) have been applied. Please see below. 
 

 How long the restrictions will be in place. 
 

 What they can do to have the decision reviewed by the Deputy Chief Executive. 
 

 That they have the right to contact the Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman about the fact that they have been treated as an unreasonable or 

unreasonably persistent complainant. 

 
10. Restrictions may include: 

 

 Advising the complainant that all future complaints on the same matter, not 

raising anything new, will be read and placed on file but not acknowledged. 

  

 Restrictions on the length or number of telephone calls and personal contact 

received from the complainant. 

 

 Restricting the way contact is made for example only by telephone, letter, or 

email. 

 

 Restricting the complainant to contacting one designated officer. 

 

 Requiring face to face contact to take place in front of a witness. 

 

 Recording of telephone calls, providing the complainant has been made aware 

that calls may or will be recorded. 

 
11. A record of any decision made, and related correspondence, will be stored on 

the complaints database under the relevant complaint reference. 

 

12. The decision made to invoke this policy will be reviewed by the Deputy Chief 

Executive after the agreed period, after which restrictions can be lifted and 

relationships restored unless there is good reason to extend the limit. 

 
 
 

Page 157

Agenda Item 13

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/complaints
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/complaint


South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Audit and Governance 

Work Programme 

containing Joint Audit and Governance  
Committee work to be undertaken  

JANUARY 2022-MARCH 2022 
 

       
 

 
What is the work programme? 
 
The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.   
 

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

External auditor's 
annual audit letter - 
2019/20 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

EY, the councils' 
external auditor, to 
report on the process for 
the signing off of the 
statement of accounts/ 

 
 

 

External audit planning 
report - 2020/21 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

EY, the councils' 
external auditor, provide 
the committee with a 
basis to review the 
proposed audit 
approach and scope for 
the 2020/21 audit. 

 
 

 

P
age 158

A
genda Item

 14



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit activity 
report - third quarter 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan. The 
report will summarise 
the outcomes of the 
recent internal audit 
activity for the 
committee to consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
third quarter 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of the 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan. 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Future provision of 
external audit services 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee is to be 
updated on the 
proposals for appointing 
the external auditor to 
the Council for the 
accounts for the five 
year-period from 
2023/24. 

To note the report and 
make 
recommendations on 
the proposals to 
Cabinet. 
 

 

P
age 159

A
genda Item

 14



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Treasury management 
strategy - 2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny for the councils' 
treasury management 
activity and to propose a 
strategy to both 
Councils, via their 
Cabinets, for the 
management of this 
function for the 
forthcoming year. 

To scrutinise the 
treasury management 
strategies and policies 
and if required, make 
recommendations for 
amendments to both 
Cabinets. 
 

 

Annual complaints 
report - 2020/21 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 

Sally Truman, 
Customer 
Services 
Manager 
Sally.Truman@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk 
 
 

The committee is 
responsible for 
reviewing the formal 
complaints received and 
performance in 
responding to 
complaints against 
timescales set out in the 
corporate complaints 
policy. 

To review the 
complaints and 
performance in 
responding within the 
timescales set in the 
corporate complaints 
policy. 
 

 

Corporate risk review 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
Jan 2022 
 

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves 
Assurance Team 
Leader 
Yvonne.CutlerGr
eaves@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework. 

To review and 
comment on progress. 
 

 

P
age 160

A
genda Item

 14



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Statement of accounts 
- 2020/21 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

Each year the 
committee must 
approve each council's 
statement of accounts 
and ensure that they 
comply with the 
requirements of 
accounting practice. 

The committee is 
asked to approve each 
council's statement of 
accounts and 
supporting documents 
for final sign-off by the 
committee's co-chairs 
and the councils' 
external auditor. 
 

 

Internal audit activity 
report - fourth quarter 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2020/21. The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
fourth quarter 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 

This is a recurring 
agenda item and is 
updated at each 
meeting. 
 

 

P
age 161

A
genda Item

 14



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Update on exchequer 
services insourcing 
project 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Ben Watson, 
Exchequer and 
Procurement 
Manager 
ben.watson@sou
thandvale.gov.uk 

To receive a progress 
update on the current 
position and ongoing 
work related to the 
insourcing of Exchequer 
Services from Capita. 

To receive both 
comments on the 
progress of insourcing 
and any follow-up work 
the committee would 
seek. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 162

A
genda Item

 14


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External auditor's annual audit letter - 2019/20
	7 External audit planning report - 2020/21
	8 Internal audit activity report - third quarter 2021/22
	9 Internal audit management report - third quarter 2021/22
	Copy of 2a App 1 - Progress Against Audit Plan 2021-2022
	Copy of 2b. App 2 - Q3 Audit Plan Schedule 2021-2022

	10 Future provision of external audit services
	JAGC Cabinet VALE future provision of external audit services -

	12 Corporate risk review
	22.12.2021 SOUTH CORP RR JAGC FINAL
	22.12.2021 VALE CORP RR JAGC FINAL

	13 Annual complaints report - 2020/21
	Corporate Complaints Policy for website Jan 2022
	Policy and procedure on managing vexatious and unreasonable complainant behaviour

	14 Work programme

